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I ·~~~ R.S. ABRAMS & CO., LLP 
~~ A Accountants & Consultants for Over 75 years 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
The Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Robert S. Abrams 
{1926-2014) 

Marianne E. Van Duyne, CPA 
Alexandria M. Battaglia, CPA 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, fiduciary funds and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre 
as of and for the fiscal year ended May 3 I, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for tlte Fi11a11cia/ Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

A11tlitor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, fiduciary funds and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre as of May 31, 2018, and the respective changes 
in financial position. and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

ISL.ANDJA: 3033 ExPRESS DRIVE NORTH, SUITE 100 • ISL.ANDIA, NY 11749 
WHITE PLAINS: 50 MAIN STREET, SUITE 1000 •WHITE PLAINS, NY 10606 

PHONE: (631) 234-4444 •FAX: (631) 234-4234 

-----------------www.rsabrams.com-----------------



Otlter Matters 

Required S11ppleme11tary luformation 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis, budgetary comparison infonnation, schedule of funding progress, schedule of the Village's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability, and the schedule of the Village's contributions on pages 1 through 13 and 62 through 66, respectively, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such infonnation, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary infonnation in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the infonnation and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquires, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the infonnation because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre's basic financial statements. The other supplementary financial infonnation as listed 
in the table of contents is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of d1e financial statements. 

The infonnation is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such infonnation has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such infonnation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by GtJvem111e11t Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Governmelll Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 3, 2018 on our 
consideration of the Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Incorporated Village of 
Rockville Centre's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

R ~ ~ ~ c.o .• X-<P 

R.S. Abrams & Co., LLP 
Islandia, NY 
December 3, 20 I 8 



Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre, New York 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

May 31, 2018 

Introduction 

The following discussion and analysis of the Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre, New 
York's financial statements provides an overview of the financial activities of the Village for the 
fiscal year ended May 31, 2018. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the 
transmittal letter, located at the front of this report, the basic financial statements and the 
accompanying notes to those statements that follow this section. 

Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2018 

• The general fund completed fiscal year 2018 with a fund balance totaling $10,280,734. Of 
this amount, unassigned fund balance totaled $6,846,257 while another $2,309,647 was 
assigned and $1, 124,830 was restricted for unused sick, vacation, and terminal leave 
payments, primarily for retiring police officers. 

• The water fund had an increase in net position of $2,026, 174 and the electric fund had a 
decrease in net position of $54,417. 

• The Village's total outstanding bonds payable at May 31, 2018 was $54,645,000. Of this 
total, $27,455,000 and $27,190,000 were attributable to the Village's governmental and 
business-type activities, respectively. 

• The capital projects fund balance was $923,922 consisting of restricted fund balance totaling 
$2,457,237 and an unassigned deficit balance of $1,533,315. 

Total net position (assets and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources) for fiscal year 2018 was $47,583,545. Of this amount $1,582,020 
represents a deficit in the governmental net position and $49, 165,565 represents the business­
type net position. The governmental activities net position decreased by $1,687,613 for the fiscal 
year ended May 31, 2018. This was primarily due to the recognition of the increase in deferred 
inflows related to pensions and net other post-employment benefit obligations at May 31, 2018, 
offset by the recognition of an increase in deferred outflows related to pensions and a decrease in 
net pension liability-proportionate share and bonds payable, inclusive of premiums. The 
Village's proportionate share of the net pension liability was $3,809, 164 of which $3,303,338 is 
recorded as a liability in the governmental activities on the government wide financial 
statements. For the fiscal year ending May 31, 2018, the Village's net OPEB obligations were 
$46, 721,342 of which $40,608,257 is recorded as a liability in governmental activities on the 
government-wide financial statements. For the business-type net position, the water fund and 
electric fund net position totals were $22,002,413 and $27,163,152, respectively. 



Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre, New York 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

May 31, 2018 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The Village's financial statements are comprised of this MD&A and the basic financial 
statements. The MD&A provides an analysis and overview of the Village's financial activities. 
The basic financial statements include three components: government-wide financial statements; 
fund financial statements; and notes to financial statements. This report also includes other 
supplementary information as listed in the table of contents. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are presented in a manner similar to private-sector 
business financial statements. The statements are prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The government-wide financial 
statements include two statements: Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities. 
Fiduciary activities, whose resources are not available to finance Village programs, are excluded 
from these statements. 

The Statement of Net Position presents the Village's total assets and deferred outflows of 
resources, as well as total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources with the difference 
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in the net position may serve as a 
gauge to determine whether the financial position of the Village is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing the change in the Village's net position 
during the current fiscal year. All revenues and expenses are reported in this statement regardless 
of the timing of cash flows. The focus of this statement is on the net cost of providing various 
activities to the citizens of the Village. 

Both of the above financial statements have separate sections for the two different types of 
activities. These two types of activities are: 

Governmental activities - The activities reflected in this section are general government support, 
public safety, health, transportation, economic opportunity and development, culture and 
recreation, home and community services and interest. These activities are mostly supported by 
taxes, charges for services and operating grants and contributions. 

Business-we activities - These activities consist of the Village's two enterprise funds: water and 
electric. These activities are intended to recover their cost of operation, including depreciation, 
primarily through user charges. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following this discussion 
and analysis. 

2 



Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre, New York 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

May 31, 2018 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is an accounting entity with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balances/net 
position, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are 
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to 
be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The Village divides its funds 
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental (unds - Most of the basic services provided by the Village are financed and 
accounted for through governmental funds. Governmental fund financial statements focus on 
current inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as the available balances of these 
resources at the end of the fiscal year. This information is useful in determining the Village's 
financing requirements for the subsequent fiscal period. Governmental funds use the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting with the 
exception of the Section 8 Fund where the accrual basis of accounting is utilized. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is for the much narrower current period, it is useful to 
compare this information to the data presented in the government-wide financial statements in 
order to better understand the long-term impact of the Village's current financing decisions. Both 
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The Village has six individual governmental funds: general fund, capital projects fund, 
community development fund, section 8 housing fund, special purpose fund and debt service 
fund. Of these, the general and capital projects funds are reported as major funds and are 
presented in separate columns on the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental 
fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. Data for the other 
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated column on these statements. 
Individual fund data for these non-major funds can be found on the combining statements 
elsewhere in this report. 

The Village adopts an annual budget for its general fund and debt service fund. Budgetary 
comparison statements have been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with the 
respective budgets. 

The governmental fund financial statements can be found in the basic financial statements 
section of this report. 

Proprietary funds - The Village maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise 
funds and internal service funds. These funds are used to show activities that operate similar to 
private business enterprises and charge fees for services provided. Proprietary fund financial 
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Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre, New York 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

May 31, 2018 

statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, 
like the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The Village uses enterprise funds to account for its Water and 
Electric activities. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and 
allocate costs internally among the Village's various functions. Within the Internal Service fund, 
the Village accounts for its activities related to workers' compensation benefits, general liability 
claims and unemployment claims. 

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found in the basic financial statements section 
of this report. 

Fiduciary funds - These funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside of the Village. The fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial 
statements because the assets of these funds are not available to support the activities of the 
Village. 

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found in the basic financial statements section of 
this report. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The notes to financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes can be found following the basic financial statements section of this report. 

Other Information 

Additional statements and schedules can be found immediately following the notes to financial 
statements. These include the combining statements for the non-major governmental funds and 
proprietary funds and schedules of budget to actual comparisons. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's 
financial position. In the case of the Village, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $47,583,545 for fiscal year ended May 31 , 2018. 

4 



Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre, New York 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

May 31, 2018 

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position: 

Current Assets 
Capital Assets, Net 

Total Assets 

Def erred Outflows of 
Resources 

Current Liabilities 
Non-current Liabilities 

Total Liabilitiles 

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 

Net Position: 
Net Investment in Capital 

Assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted (Deficit) 

May 31, 2018 May 31, 2017 

Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type 
Activities 

19,437,807 
70,038,427 
89,476,234 

8,344,263 

4,449,671 
87,265,071 
91,714,742 

7,687,775 

43,590,259 
2,618, 743 

(47,791,022) 

Activities 

$ 19,605,536 
73,239,048 
92,844,584 

1,686,555 

6,679,654 
37,069,783 
43,749,437 

Total Activities 

$ 39,043,343 $ 20,742,003 
143,277,475 67,185,347 
182,320,818 87,927,350 

10,030,818 _ ___:,7,_16...:..0,44_1_ 

II, 129,325 
124,334,854 
135,464,179 

3,652,433 
89,919,336 
93,571,769 

1,616,137 9,303,912 1,410,429 _ ____;,___.;.._ 

45,463,039 89,053,298 
2,618,743 

3,702,526 (44,088,496) 

40,699,380 
2,558,742 

( 43, 152,529) 

Activities Total 

$ 23,195,449 $ 43,937,452 
68,552, 136 135,737,483 
91,747,585 179,674,935 

1,263,528 

5,824,403 
39,778,256 
45,602,659 

8,423,969 

9,476,836 
129,697,592 
139, 174,428 

214,646 1,625,075 ------'-

37,925,381 78,624,761 
2,558,742 

9,268,427 (33,884, 102) 

Total Net Position (Deficit) $ (1,582,020) $ 49,165,565 $ 47,583,545 $ 105,593 $ 47,193,808 $ 47,299,401 -==--....... -
The largest component of the Village's net position reflects its net investment in capital assets 
amounting to $89,053,298. The Village uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens 
and, consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Village's net 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be utilized to liquidate these liabilities. 

Restricted net position of $2,618, 743 represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on 
how they may be used. The restrictions are for the following purposes: 

s 



Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre, New York 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

May 31, 2018 

Capital projects 
Employee benefit 

accrued liability 

Debt service 
Section 8 housing 
Special purpose -

culture and recreation 
and public safety 

Total 

Ma~Jl, 

2fil.& 2fil1 

$ 942,682 $ 333,407 

l, 124,830 1,513,159 
363,874 467,133 

44,504 64,772 

142.853 180,271 
$2,618.743 $ 2.558,742 

Unrestricted net deficit totaled $44,088,496. This amount is comprised of governmental activities 
net deficit totaling $47,791,022 and business-type activities net position totaling $3,702,526. The 
deficit in governmental activities net position is primarily due to ( 1) compensated absences of 
approximately $12 million, and (2) other post-employment benefit obligations recorded in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 45 of approximately $41 million (3) deferred inflows 
related to pensions, offset by a decrease in the Village's net pension liability - proportionate 
share and bonds payable, inclusive of premiums and an increase in deferred outflows related to 
pensions. 
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Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre, New York 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

May 31, 2018 

The following table reflects the changes in net position from operating results: 

rrogram Revenues: 
Charges for services: 
Operating grants and 

contnbuuons 
Capital grants and 

contmut10ns 
General Revenues: 

Real propcny taxes 
Otlxr paymel1S i1 li:uoftaxcs 
lrtercst lllXI pcrakics on ta~ 
U1iics 
Non propcny taxes 
Unrestricted use of 

money and propcny 
State and federal all 
Miscellaneous 

Tomi Revenues 

Program Expenses: 
General government and adrrun. 
Pubbc safety 
Hcakh 
T ransportaoon 
EcOllOllllC opponllliy and 

development 
Cukure and rccrca!lcn 
Home and commooity 

services 
Interest 
Water 
Elcctrr; 

Total expenses 

Change in Net Positi>n 
Net Positiln - beginning of year 

Net rosilion • end of year 

l\lay 31, 2018 
Govern menial Dusincn·lypc 

Aclivilies Ac!lvllles 

s 11,716,049 s 

3,184,457 

1,333,276 

29,121,923 
?fX>,726 

113,259 
162,028 

32,595,126 s 

Total 

44,311,175 s 

3,184,457 

1,333,276 

29,121,923 
?fX>,726 

113,259 
162,028 

Governmental 
Aclivillcs 

Mayll,2017 
Buslness-lypc 

At!lvillcs 

11,803,398 s 33,052,978 s 

3,811,766 

406,896 

28,589,814 
560,602 
125,n6 
150,588 
66,749 

Tolal 

44,856,376 

3,811,766 

406,896 

28,589,814 
560,602 
125,n6 
150,588 
66,749 

515,063 205,704 720,767 88,537 142,617 231,154 
941,398 941,398 923,937 923,937 

·1.569,029 -----_____ 1.s .... 6'""'9.0....;.2_9 ___ .....::;88::::2::.325:::.. ------ -----"8=82,3=25;;;;... 

49,363.208 __ ___:;;32::.:,8o;.:00~,83~0 ---==82::..:.;.164:..:.=.03"'"8 ---~47.:.;.,4'""10c;.;.38=8 __ .....;;.;33:.:..:..1.:..:95c;.;.59;.:..5 ___ 80 ........ 60_5._,983_ 

8,919,948 
22,910,156 

82,370 
5,144,436 

2,932,681 
5,194,348 

5,121,615 
745).67 

8,919,948 
22,9!0,156 

82,370 
5,144,436 

2,932,681 
S,194,348 

7,640,852 
23,306,108 

50,585 
4,376,202 

2,668,507 
5,129,041 

7,640,852 
23,306,108 

50,585 
4,376,202 

2,668,507 
5,129,041 

5,121,615 4,573,844 4,573,844 
745,267 727,569 727,569 

4,945,390 4,945,390 4,954,780 4,954,780 

----__ ___;;25=,8=83=.6=83 ___ .;;.;25""'.8~83.-...683=- ------__ ___.,24...,.9.-11-.272.-. ____ 24~,9_11~.272_ 

51.0S0.821 __ --:;3.:;::0.82:::9=.0.:.:;,73 ___ .:..:81=.879.:..:..:::;,89'-'-4 ---~48;:.:.4.:..:12::..:.;.70=8 __ .....::;29;..i::.S66=,05:;,:.2 ___ 78_...J"'-38.._,760_ 

(1,687,613) 1,971,757 284,144 (1,062,320) 3,329,543 2,267,223 
__ _..1 ..... os .... .s9--3 ___ 4--7=.19-..3 ...... 80 .... s _____ 41=2w'-'-'-'-.40;;-.1 ----"1:.:..:..1:::..:67!:..9=13 --~43;..i::,864=.26=-5 __ ___,.45=.0=32 ...... 11,_s 

s (1,582,020) s 49,165,565 s 47,583,545 s 105,593 s 47,193,808 s 47,299,401 -----
Governmental activities. As discussed previously, governmental activities resulted in a $1 ,687,613 
reduction in the Village's net position during the current fiscal year. Governmental activities 
reflected a net deficit of$1,582,020 as opposed to a net position of$105,593 for 2017, based on total 
revenues of $49,363,208 and total expenses of$51,050,281. 

1 



Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre, New York 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

May 31, 2018 

Property truces ($29 .1 million) and charges for services ($11. 7 million) represented the largest 
revenue sources. Property truces grew 1.86% due to a real estate true rate increase of 1.72%. 
Collection of the current true levy remains very strong at nearly 100%. Operating grants and 
contributions for general governmental activities decreased by $627,309 primarily due to 
decreased reimbursements from FEMA and HUD during the current fiscal year. Capital grants 
and contributions for general governmental activities increased by $926,380 primarily due to a 
contribution of $724,000 during the current fiscal year. 

Public Safety expenses totaled $22.9 million and represented 44.88% of total expenses. Culture 
and Recreation expenses totaled $5.2 million and reflected the Village's continuing commitment 
to its parks and recreation programs. Transportation expenditures totaled $5.1 million, an 
increase of $768,234 from the prior year. Additional post-employment benefits obligations of 
$5.3 million and the change in net pension liability- proportionate share and related deferred 
inflows and deferred outflows recorded in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68 of 
approximately $2.8 million were the primary reasons for the decrease in net position. 

Business~type activities. Business-type activities reflected a net position totaling $49, 165,565 
of which the water and electric funds totals were $22,002,413 and $27,163,152, respectively. 
Electric fund metered sales totaled $25,376,857, a decrease from $26,422,956 in fiscal year 
2017. This decrease was primarily due to a decrease in consumption. Metered sales in the water 
fund decreased from $5,613,203 in fiscal year 2017 to $5,430,927 in fiscal year 2018 due to 
decreased usage in correlation with a cooler summer temperatures than the previous year. 
Purchased power and production for the electric fund increased from $11,371,782 and 
$1,922,845, respectively in fiscal year 2017 to $11,657 ,876 and $2,469, 775, respectively in fiscal 
year 2018, due to an increase in LIPA rates and zero emission expenses which began in April 
2017. Employee benefits for the electric fund increased by approximately $625, 196 from fiscal 
year 2017. 

Financial Analysis of the Village's Funds 

As noted earlier, the Village uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental funds. The focus of the Village's governmental funds is to provide infonnation 
on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such infonnation is useful 
in assessing the Village's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may 
serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the 
fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Village's governmental funds reported a combined 
ending fund balance of $11,757,961, a decrease of $1,941,039 from the prior year. Of the total 
combined fund balance, $6,846,257 constitutes unassigned fund balance in the general fund, 
$2,309,64 7 constitutes assigned fund balance in the general fund, $1,533,315 constitutes 
unassigned deficit balance in the capital projects fund, $2,074 is assigned for the community 
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May 31, 2018 

development fund, and $4, 133,298 constitutes aggregate restricted fund balance in all 
governmental funds. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
the total fund balance of the general fund was $10,280, 734 compared to $8,325, 106 at May 31, 
2017. None of the May 31, 2018 fund balance was appropriated towards the next fiscal year 
budget. Of the general fund balance $3A34,477 is either assigned or restricted and therefore is 
not available for discretionary spending. The assigned fund balance is comprised of $2,024,956 
for future real estate certiorari settlements and $284,691 to liquidate contracts and purchase 
orders. 

The general fund revenues and other financing sources aggregate amount was $44,967,585 in 
fiscal 2018, an increase of $1,169,679 from fiscal year 2017. Real property taxes totaled 
$29,121,923, an increase of $532,109 or 1.86% from fiscal year 2017 and represented the single 
largest revenue source at 64.76% of total general fund revenues. Parks and recreation charges 
totaled $1,924,956, an increase of $75, 799 from fiscal year 2017. Building and alteration permits 
increased by $176,910, from $1,005,427 in fiscal year 2017 to $1,182,337 in fiscal year 2018, 
primarily due to an increase in commercial property permits. Parking meter revenues decreased 
from $1,387,024 in fiscal year 2017 to $1,343,021 in fiscal 2018 due to a decrease in usage. 
Interfund revenues generated from charges to the Water and Electric funds increased by 
$105,859, to a total of $4,223,834, primarily as a result of increases to reimbursements for wages 
and benefit expenditures. 

Once again, public safety represented the largest expenditure category totaling $12,432,082, a 
$431,884 decrease from fiscal year 2017. Employee benefits increased from $10,943,806 in 
fiscal year 2017 to $11,313,091 in fiscal year 2018. Health insurance related expenditures 
increased from $5, 180,660 in fiscal year 2017 to $5, 758,327 in fiscal year 2018. General 
government support expenditures aggregated $6,240,668, an increase of $198,350 from fiscal 
year 2017. Lastly, transfers for debt service decreased by $46,477 from $4,011,096 during fiscal 
year 2017 to $3,964,619 during fiscal 2018. 

The capital projects fund is used to account for capital project activity throughout the Village, 
exclusive of activity in the water and electric enterprise funds. The fund balance totaled 
$923,922, a decrease of $3,735,959 from fiscal year 2017. Expenditures totaled $5,061,802 in 
fiscal year 2018, a $725,367 decrease from fiscal year 2017. Capital projects during fiscal 2018 
included road improvements, the renovation of Village buildings, parks and recreation and public 
safety. 

Non-major Governmental Funds consists of special revenue funds and the debt service fund. The 
special revenue funds are made up of the following individual funds: community development, 
section 8 housing and special purpose. For fiscal year 2018, the combined fund balance of the 
non-major Governmental Funds totaled $553,305 as compared to $714,013 at May 31, 2017. The 
special purpose fund portion of the fund balance totaled $142,853 and consisted of a reserve for 
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trusts to be utilized for recreational and police purposes. The section 8 housing fund had a 
restricted fund balance of $44,504. 

The debt service fund had a total fund balance at May 31, 2018 of $363,874 all of which was 
restricted for future debt service purposes. At May 31, 2017, the debt service fund had a total 
fund balance of $467,133. Debt service expenditures for fiscal year 2018 totaled $4,099,619, a 
decrease of $11,4 77 from fiscal year 2017. 

Proprietary funds. The Village's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Net position totaled $49,165,565 at the end of fiscal year 2018 compared to $47,193,808 at May 
31, 2017. Other factors concerning the finances of the enterprise fund have already been 
addressed in the discussion of the Village's business-type activities. 

There is no net position reported in the Village' s internal service fund. It has been the Village' s 
practice to have the general and enterprise funds transfer the necessary amounts to meet all 
projected general liability, unemployment and worker's compensation expenditures on an annual 
basis. 

Budgetary Highlights 

The Village adopts annual operating budgets for its general and debt service funds and reports 
the results of operations on a budgetary comparison basis. The Village also used budget 
estimates as a management tool for its enterprise and internal service funds, although the Village 
does not report the results of these funds on a budgetary comparison basis. The capital projects 
fund is budgeted on a project basis. 

In preparing its budget, the Village attempts to estimate its revenues and expenditures using 
realistic, but conservative methods so as to budget its operations in a prudent manner. As a 
result, the Board of Trustees adopts budget adjustments during the course of the fiscal year to 
reflect both changed priorities and availability of additional revenues to allow for expansion of 
existing or creation of new programs. 

The final amended general fund budget reflected a $179,962 increase in appropriations from the 
original budget. The increase is largely attributable to the larger than anticipated expenditures in 
general government support, public safety offset by a decrease in home and community and 
employee benefits. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets. The Village's capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as 
of May 31, 2018 amount to $143,277,475 (net of accumulated depreciation). These capital assets 
include land, buildings and equipment, infrastructure, and construction-in-progress. 
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Capital Assets 
(Net of Depreciation) 

(in thousands) 

May 31, 2018 Ma~ 31 , 2017 
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total 

Land $ 4,576 $ 376 $ 4,952 $ 4,576 $ 376 $ 4,952 

Buildings and 

Equipment 22,938 63,029 85,967 23, 138 56,064 79,202 

Infrastructure 20,955 20,955 22,087 22,087 

Construction-
in-Progress 21,570 9,834 31,404 17,385 12,112 29,497 

Total $ 70,039 $ 73,239 $ 143,278 $ 67,186 $ 68,552 $ 135,738 

Additional information on the Village's capital assets can be found in Note 8 in the notes to 
financial statements. 

Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village had total debt outstanding of 
$54,645,000 compared to $60, 730,000 at May 31, 2017. The Village's total long-term debt 
decreased by $6,085,000 from the prior fiscal year. All of this debt is backed by the full faith and 
credit of the Village. During fiscal year 2018 the Village did not issue any new general 
obligation bonds. 

General Obligation 

Bonds s 

Outstanding Debt 
General Obligation Bonds 

(in thousands) 

Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

27,455 s 30,735 s 27,190 s 29,995 

Total 

2018 2017 

$ 54,645 s 60,730 

Through sound financial management, effective budgetary controls and manageable debt levels, 
the Village has been successful in receiving its high-grade ratings for its general obligation 
bonds. The Village enjoys bond ratings of Aa2 from Moody's Investors Service and AAA from 
Standard and Poor's. These ratings place the Village in the upper tier of rated Villages on Long 
Island. 
The New York State Constitution limits the amount of indebtedness, both long-term and short­
term, which the Village may incur. The State Constitution provides that the Village may not 
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contract indebtedness in an amount greater than seven percent of the average full value of 
taxable real property in the Village for the most recent five years. Certain indebtedness is 
excluded in determining the Village's authority to contract indebtedness within the constitutional 
limits; accordingly, debt of this kind, commonly referred to as "excluded debt11, may be issued 
without regard to the constitutional limits and without affecting the Village's authority to issue 
debt subject to the limit. At May 31, 2018, the Village had a constitutional debt limit in excess of 
$287 million. Total debt for both governmental and business-type activities is well below this 
amount. 

Additional information on the Village's long-term debt can be found in Note 11 in the notes to 
financial statements. 

Economic Factors and Fiscal Year 2019 Budget 

The Village continues to enjoy both strong economic and fiscal health. The U.S. Census Bureau 
reported 2016 estimated median household and per capita incomes at $102,807 and $57,503, 
which are 69% and 68% above the 2016 estimated New York State averages respectively. An 
estimated 5.4% of the population is living below the poverty level, 61 % below the estimated 
New York State average. 

The fiscal 2019 budget contained a 1.88% real estate tax rate increase. This is the sixth 
consecutive year the board of trustees had kept the adopted budget under the state's tax cap. 
Historically, annual real estate tax collections have averaged 99.90%. 

The following revenue sources are expected to experience budget growth in 2019: Payments in 
lieu of taxes from $586,592 to $678,219, parks and recreation from $1,900,000 to $2,000,000, on 
street parking from $1,408,000 to $1,423,000, interest earnings from $73,000 to $90,000, and 
sale of equipment from $10,000 to $15,000. 

Building permits is anticipated to decline in 2019 from $1,148,408 to $1,100,000, as well as a 
decline in fines and forfeited from $1,400,000 to $1 ,200,000 as well as unclassified revenue from 
$1,34 7,043 to $850,000. 

The fiscal 2019 budget assumes expenditures will be relatively consistent assuming a 0.25% 
decrease in total expenditures. Employee benefits including health insurance and retirement 
systems expenditures are anticipated to increase by approximately $269,789 for 2019. 

The schedule below provides the budget growth in funding premiums from the New York State 
Retirement Systems during the last twelve fiscal years. 

Adopted General fund Budget for Retirement Systems 
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I 2009 2010 I 2011 I 2012 2013 I 
$ 1,610,000 I $ 1,595,000 $ 1,582,000 I $ 2,213,000 I $ 2,692,000 $ 3,566,512 I 

2014 I 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 
$ 4,117,926 I $ 4,080,000 $ 3,950,000 $ 3,795,000 $ 3,890,400 $ 3,458,208 

The total debt service budget for fiscal year 2019 is $4,189,813 compared to $3,964,619 during 
fiscal year 2018. 

Health insurance related expenditures continue to grow. The schedule below reveals the budget 
growth in this category during the last twelve fiscal years. 

Adopted General fund Budget for Health Insurance 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
$ 3.250,000 $ 3,475,000 $ 3,616,000 $ 3,852,000 $ 4,322,770 $ 4,537,000 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 
$ 4.690,674 $ 4,653,000 $ 4,862.000 $ 5, 142,000 $ 5.567,600 $ 6,300,000 

The health insurance budget has increased 94% between fiscal year 2008 and fiscal year 2019. 
The fiscal year 2019 budget for health insurance is $6,300,000, an increase of $732,400 from 
fiscal year 2018. Short tenn health insurance premium increases are expected to continue at the 
same pace as in recent fiscal years. However, there is some concern that long term premium 
increases may experience more significant growth in response to federal health care reform. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village's finances. 
Questions concerning any of the infonnation provided in this report or requests for additional 
financial information should be addressed to Dennis Morgan, Comptroller, Village of Rockville 
Centre, PO Box 950, Rockville Centre, NY 11571-0950, telephone (516) 678-9228 or visit the 
Village's web site at www.rvcny.us. 
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

STA TEl\IEl'I OF NET POSITION 
MAY JI, 2018 

Primary Government 

Govemmenllll Bus mess· Type 
Activities Acuviues Tot:il 

ASSJ:TS 
Cnsh and c:ish c:qu1valc:nts • unrestricted s 14,410,943 s 10,181,353 s 24,S92,296 

Cnsh and cash c:qu1valcnts • rcstncted 3,252,176 3,252,176 
Tnxes receivable:, net of allowance 

for uncollectible amounts 294 294 
Other m:eivables 

Accounts. net 211 ,682 6,611,219 6,822,901 
State and federal aid 177,003 177,003 
Due from other governments 209, 153 209,153 

lntc:mnl balances 27,365 (27,36S) 
Prepaid expenses 261 ,348 261 ,J48 
lnvcntonc:s 2,840,329 2,840,329 
Cnpital :issclS (net of accumulated depreciation) 

Land 4,576,378 375,885 4,952.263 
Construcuon•tn·progress 21 ,569,824 9,833,747 JI ,403,571 
Buildings and equipment 22,937,568 63,029,416 85,966.984 
Infrastructure 20,954,657 20.954.657 
TOTAL ASSETS 88,588,391 92,844,584 181.432,975 

DEFERRED OlITFLOWS OF RF.SOURCES 
Pensions 8,198,439 1,515,351 9,713,790 
Oercrred charge on refundmg 145.824 171,204 317,028 

TOTAL DEFERRED OlITFLOWS OF RESOURCES 8,344,263 1,686,555 10,030,818 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES 96,932,654 94,531,139 191.463,793 

LIABILITIES 
Paynbles 

Accounts payable 1,269,J 12 4,486,643 5,755,955 
Accrued linb1htics 1,579,914 278,466 1.858,380 
Accrued interest payable 206,083 230,135 436,218 
Due to other governments 2,216 2,216 
Customer deposits 1.502,868 1,502,868 
Due to retirement systems 558,733 117,824 676,557 

Unearned revenues 
Collections m ndvancc 507 63.718 64,225 

Noncum:nt linbilities 
Due: within one year 

Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums 3,573,993 2,742,581 6,.316,574 
Clnims paynble 1,318,344 1,318,344 
Compensated nbsencc:s 1,515,187 62.591 1,577.778 

Due in more than one yenr 
Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums 24,579,554 25,204,632 49,784,186 
Claims payable: 1,784,500 1,784,500 
Compensated absences 10,526,961 2,441,068 12,968,029 
Net pension linbihly - proponionatc share 3,303,338 505,826 3,809,164 
N~l other post-employment benefits obligations 40.608,257 6,113,085 46,721,342 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 90,826,899 43,749,437 134.576,336 

DEFERRt:D INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pensions 7,687,775 1,616,137 9,303.912 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in cap11al assets 43,590,259 45,463,039 89.053.298 
Restricted for 

Capunl proJccts 942,682 942,682 
Employee benefit nccrucd liability 1,124,830 1,124,830 

Debt sc:rv1c~ 363,874 363,874 
Section 8 I-lousing 44,504 44,504 

Spccud purpose 142,853 142,853 
Unrestricted (dcfic1l) (47.791.022) 3,702,526 ~44,088,496) 

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEF1c1n s (1,582,020~ s 49,165,565 s 47,583.545 
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TllE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR TllE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY JI, 1018 

Pro~ram Rrvtnurs Nrl (E11?rnsr) Rrvrnur and Chansr in Net Position 
Prima!:l'. Govtrnmrnl 

Oprraling C11pi111l 
Chargts for Gruis and Granls and Governmental Buslnrss-Typr 

E~eensu Srn·icu Contribullons Contributions Acllvlllrs Acth'ltlrs Tolal 

FUNCTJO:-.IS I PROGRA!llS 
Govemmcntol Ac11v111es 

Gcncrol government ond administration s 8,919,948 s 4,414,267 $ 269,043 s s (4,236,638) s s (4,236,638) 
Public snfoty 22,910,156 3,793,368 (19.116,788) (19,116,788) 
Health 82,370 68,265 (14,105) (14,105) 
Transportation 5,144,436 609,276 (4,535,160) ( 4 ,535.160) 
Economic opportumty and development 2,932,681 43,350 2,785,118 (104,213) (104,213) 
Culture and rccrcouon 5,194,348 1,984.385 32,736 724,000 (2,453,227) (2.453,227) 
Home and community services 5,121,615 1,412,414 97,560 (3,611,641) (3,611,641) 
Interest 745.267 (745.267) (745.267) 
Tol11I Govrrnmrntal Acch·illrs 51.050,821 11.716.049 3,184,457 1.333.276 (34,817.039) (34,817,039) 

Busmcss-Type Acu~ille$ 
Woter fund 4,945,390 6,871,383 1,925.993 1,925,993 
Elcclnc fund 25,883,683 25.723,743 i159.940) !159,940) 
Tol•I Huslnrss-Typr Activilics 30.829.073 32.595,126 1.766,053 1,766,053 

Total Prim11ry Gonrnment s 81,879,894 $44,311,175 $ 3,184,457 s 1,333,276 (34,817,039) 1,766,053 (33,050,986) 

CF.NERAL REVENUES 
Rcol property taxes, levied for general purpose 29,121,923 29, 121 ,923 
Other paymenlS m heu of tuxes 706,726 706,726 
Interest ond pcnnlucs on ta~cs 113,259 113,259 
Uuhtu:s 162,028 162,028 
Use of money and property 515,063 205,704 720,767 
Stnte ;ud (unrestricted) 941.398 941.398 
M1scc:llnncous 1,569,029 1,569,029 

TOT,\L GENEIL\L REVENUES 33.129.426 205.704 33.335,130 

CllANGt: IN NET POSITION ( 1,687,613) 1,971,757 284,144 

TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 105,593 47 193.808 47.299,401 

TOTAL NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ (1,582.020) s 49,165,565 s 47,583,545 
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
BALANCE SHEET- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

MAY 31, 2018 

Capital Non-Major Total 
General Projects Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Funds Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted $ 11 ,281,575 $ $ 28,385 $ 11,309,960 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 1,124,830 546,925 1,580,421 3,252, 176 
Taxes receivable, net of allowance 

for uncollectible amounts 294 294 
Other receivables: 

Accounts, net 189,656 22,026 211,682 
State and federal aid 118,522 58,481 177,003 
Due from other governments 157,749 51 ,404 209,153 
Due rrom other funds 209,832 705,000 376 915,208 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 13,082,458 $ 1,310,406 $ 1,682,612 $ 16,075,476 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Payables 

Accounts payable $ 643,052 $ 381 ,283 $ 4,130 $ 1,028,465 
Accrued liabilities 1,512,849 345,542 1,858,391 
Due to other governments 2,216 2,216 
Due to retirement systems 558,733 558,733 
Due to other funds 84,367 5,201 779,635 869,203 

Unearned revenues 
Collections in advance 507 507 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 2,801,724 386,484 1,129,307 4,317,515 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 1,124,830 942,682 551 ,231 2,618,743 
Restricted (unspent proceeds) 1,514,555 1,514,555 
Assigned (community development) 2,074 2,074 
Assigned (tax certiorari) 2,024,956 2,024,956 
Assigned (unappropriated) 284,691 284,691 
Unassigned 6,846,257 (1,533 ,3 15) 5,312,942 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 10,280,734 923,922 553,305 11,757,961 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 13,082,458 $ 1,310,406 $ 1,682,612 $ 16,075,476 
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
MAY 3J, 2018 

Total Governmental Fund Balances 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because: 

Deferred inflows of resources - The Statement of Net Position recognized revenues and expenditures 
under the full accrual method. Governmental funds recognize revenue and expenditures under the 
modified accrual method. Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recorded on the 
Statement of Net Position and amortized as a reduction of pension expense in future years. 

Deferred outflows of resources - The Statement of Net Position recognizes expenditures incurred 
under the full accrual method. Governmental funds recognize expenditures under the modified 
accrual method. Deferred outflows arc related to pensions that will be recognized as expenditures 
in future periods amounted to: 

The cost of building and acquiring capital assets (land, buildings, equipment) financed 
from the governmental funds are reported as expenditures in the year they are incurred, 
and the assets do not appear on the balance sheet. However, the Statement of Net Position 
include those capital assets among the assets of the Village as a whole, and their original 
costs are expensed annually over their useful lives. 

Original cost of capital assets 
Accumulated depreciation 

$ 107,796,898 
(37,758,471) 

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, 
such as insurance, to individual funds. This is the total assets of the internal service fund Jess 
current liabilities, excluding current portion of claims payable, reported on the Statement of Net Position. 

Governmental funds report the effect of a deferred charge on defeasance when debt is first issued 
as an expenditure, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. 

Interest payable applicable to the Village's governmental activities are not due and 
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported in the funds. 
However, these liabilities are included in the Statement of Net Position. 

Premium on bond refunding and serial bonds. The Statement of Activities 
will amortize the premium on bond refunding and serial bonds over the life of the bonds. 
Governmental funds recorded the premiums as a revenue in the year of issue. 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not 
reported in the funds: 

Compensated absences 
Claims payable 
Bonds payable 
Net pension liability • proportionate share 

s (12,042,148) 
(3,102,844) 

(27,455,000) 
(3,303,338) 

$ 11,757,961 

(7,687,775) 

8,198,439 

70,038,427 

3,102,844 

145,824 

(206,083) 

(698,547) 

Net other post-employment benefits obligation ( 40,329, 780) (86,233, I I 0) 

Total Net Position $ (I ,5 82,020) 
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
ST A TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CllANG ES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

Cupit11I Non-l\lajor Total 
General rrojecls Governmental Gol'crnmcntal 

Fund Fund Funds Funds 
REVENUES 

Reul property taxes s 29,121,923 s s s 29,121,923 
Other tax items 982,014 982,014 
Departmental income 4,810,702 43,350 4,854,052 
Use of money & property 558,297 24,7IO 583,007 
Licenses & pennits 1,277,984 1,277,984 
Fines & forfeitures 1,223,027 1,223,027 
Sale of property & compensation for loss 187,183 187,183 
lnh .. 'l'govcmmental charges 4,223,834 4,223,834 
State and county aid 974,133 609,276 1,583,409 
Federal aid 81,860 2,882,678 2,964,538 
Miscellaneous 1.526,628 724,000 l I0,667 2,361,295 

TOTAL REVENUES 44.967,585 1,333.276 3,061,405 49,362,266 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government support 6,240,668 6,240,668 
Public safety 12,432,082 12,432,082 
Health 62,093 62,093 
Transportation 2,556,981 2,556,981 
Economic opportunity and development 86,649 2,849,852 2,936,501 
Culture and recreation 3,046,120 148,076 3,194,196 
l-lome and community services 3,309,654 97,560 3,407,214 
Employee bcnelits 11,313,091 11,313,091 

Debt service; 
Principal 3,280,000 3,280,000 
Interest 819,619 819,619 

Capital outlu)' 5,061.802 5,061.802 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 39.047,338 5,061.802 7,195,107 51,304,247 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) 
OF REVENl1ES OVER EXPENDITURES 5,920,247 (3,728.526) ( 4, 133, 702) ( 1.941,981) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES) 
Refund of bond escrow payment 942 942 
lnterfund revenues 

Transfers in 3,972,052 3,972,052 
Transfers (out) (3.964.619) (7,433) (3,972,052) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES) (3,964,619) (7,433) 3,972,994 942 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 1,955,628 (3, 735,959) (160,708) (1,941,039) 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,325,106 4,659,881 714,013 13,699,000 

FUND BALANCES - END OF \ 'EAR s 10.280,734 s 923,922 s 553.305 s I 1,757.961 
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TllE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
RECO:-iiCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUl"OS ST ATEl\IENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CllANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE FISCAL \'EAR ENDED MAY JI, 2018 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Amounts reported for govemmcntnl activities m the Statement of Acuv1111:s nrc diffen:nt because 

Long-Tenn Revenue and l'Zxpense Differences 
In the Statement of Act1v1tics, compensnted absences (vncation, sick, and terminal leave} 
arc measured by the amounts enrned or incurred during the ycnr. In the govcmmentnl 
funds, expenditures for these items arc measured by the amount of financial 
resources used Compensated absences from Mny 31, 2017 to Mny 31, 2018 changed by 

Net other post-employment benefits obligation in the Statement of Activ111es is measured by the 
wnounts earned or incurred during the yenr. In the governmental funds 
expenditures for these Items arc measured by the amount of financial resources used. 
Net olher post-employment benefits payable from Mny 31, 2017 to May 31, 2018 changed by: 

Changes m the proportionate share of net pension liability nnd related deferred innows 
and outnows reported in the Sta1ement of Activities do not provide for or require use of 
financial resources and therefore nre not reported ns revenues or expenditures 
m the governmental funds 

Employees' retirement system 
Pohce and Firemen's retirement system 

Capnal Related DifTcrences 
Capnul outloys to purchase or build capital nssets nrc reported in governmental funds 
as expenditures. However, for governmental activities, those costs nrc capitalized 
and shown in the Statement of Net Position and allocated over their useful hves as 
annual deprec111tion expense in the Statement of Activities. 

Long-Tenn Debt Dtffcrcnccs 

Capital outlays 
Capital asset add111ons 
Depreciation expense 

Repayment of bond principal is on expenditure m the governmental funds, but it 
reduces long-tenn habihucs m the St111ement of Net Position and does not affect 
the Statement of Acllvittcs. 

Governmental funds report the premiums, discounts and similar items on the refunded debt 
when the debt is first issued. These amounts arc deferred and amortized in the Statement 
of Activities Amortiznuon for the fiscal ycnr ended May 31, 2018 wDS. 

Deferred charges nre amortized in the Statement of Net Position over the life 
of the bond. Governmental funds recorded the: charges DS expenditures in the 
year rec et vcd Amortization for the fiscal ycnr ended was. 

lntcn .. -st on long-term debt m the Statement of Activities d11Ters from the amounts 
reported m the govemmcntnl fonds because interest is recorded os an expenditure in 
the funds when it is due, and this requires the use of current financial resources. 
In the Statements of Act1v1ues, interest C:'Cpcnse is recognized as the interest 
accrues regardless of\\ hen it is due Accrued interest from May 31, 2017 to 
Moy 31, 2018 changed by. 

Change m Net Pos111on of Governmental Activiucs 
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s 24,603 
(298,646) 

s 5,042,802 
1,223,896 

(3.413,618) 

s (1,941,039) 

(392,225) 

(S,287,738} 

(274,043} 

2,853,080 

3,280,000 

113,993 

(72,911} 

33,270 

s ( 1.687,613) 



TllE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION-PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

MAY JI, 2018 

Business· Type Activities· Governmental 
Ente!:l!rise Funds Activities • 

Internal Service 
Woter Electric Totals Fund 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents s 2,493,250 s 7,688,103 s I0,181,353 s 3,100,983 
Receivables 

Accounts, net 3,185,778 3,425,441 6,611,219 
Due from other funds 3,437 16,424 19,861 

Prepaid expenses 261,348 
Inventories 219,933 2.620.396 2,840.329 

Total Current Assets 5,902.398 13,750,364 19,652.762 3.362,331 
Non-Current Assets 

Land 327.271 48,614 375,885 
Construction-in-progress 6,722,871 3,110,876 9,833,747 
Buildings and equipment 41,799,021 66,463. 139 I 08,262, 160 

48,849,163 69,622,629 118,471,792 
Less - Accumulated depreciation ( 11 ,246.386) (33,986,358) (45.232,744) 

Total Non-Current Assets 37,602,777 35,636.271 73.239,048 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESO URCES 
Pensions 221,263 1,294,088 1,515,351 
Deferred charge on refunding 34,657 136,547 171.204 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 255.920 1.430.635 1.686,555 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED O UTFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES 43,761.095 50,817.270 94,578,365 3,362,331 

LIABILITIES 
P11yubles 

Accounts payable 1,173,824 3,312,819 4,486,643 240,847 
Accrued liabilities 43,217 235,249 278,466 
Accrued interest 134,075 96,060 230,135 
Due to other funds 21,794 25,432 47,226 18,640 
Customer deposits 31,642 1,471,226 1,502,868 
Due to retirement system 18,349 99,475 117,824 
Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums 1,807,992 934,589 2,742.581 
Claims payable 1,318,344 
Compensated absences 9,700 52,891 62,591 

Uneorned revenue 
Collections in advance 63.718 63.718 

Total Current Li11bilities 3,304,311 6.227.741 9,532,052 1,577,831 
Non-Current Liabilities 

Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums 16,834,931 8,369,701 25,204,632 
Claims payable 1,784,500 
Compensated absences 378,304 2,062,764 2,441,068 
Net pension liability - proportionate share 73,443 432,383 505,826 
Net other post-employment benefits obligations 933,039 5,180.046 6,113,085 

Total Non-Current Liobilities 18,219,717 16,044.894 34.264,611 1,784,500 
TOTAL l. IABILITIES 21.524.028 22,272.635 43,796,663 3,362.331 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pensions 234,654 1.381.483 1.616. 137 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 18,994,Sl I 26,468,528 45,463,039 
Unrc.mictcd 3.007.902 694,624 3,702.526 

TOT AL NET POSITION s 22.002,413 s 27,163,152 s 49.165,565 s 
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND NET POSITION- PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

Business-Type Activities - Governmental 
Ente!Erise Funds Activities -

Internal Service 
Water Electric Totals Fund 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services 

Metered sales $ 5,430,927 $ 25,376,857 $ 30,807,784 $ 
Penalty income 150,905 150,905 
Risk management 1,888,354 
Miscellaneous 901,476 346,886 1,248,362 
Total operating revenues 6,483,308 25,723,743 32,207,051 1,888,354 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 143,907 11,657,876 11,801,783 
Depreciation 839,632 1,443,818 2,283,450 
Maintenance 447,319 48,053 495,372 
lnterfund charges 579,782 2,976,992 3,556,774 
Production 2,469,775 2,469,775 
Transmission and distribution 757,461 1,288,987 2,046,448 
Street lighting 254,490 254,490 
General and administrative 1,068,955 1,652,734 2,721,689 605,143 
Employee benefits 549,003 3,568,728 4,117,731 953,177 
Insurance 75,000 258,334 333,334 209,047 
Customer deposit interest 1,251 1,251 
Judgments and claims 146,000 

Totnl operating expenses 4,461,059 25,621,038 30,082,097 1,913,367 

Operating income (loss) 2,022,249 102,705 2,124,954 (25,013) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Rental income 388,075 388,075 
Interest income 100,181 105,523 205,704 25,013 
Interest expense (484,331) (262,645) (746,976) 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 3,925 (157,122) (153,197) 25,013 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 2,026,174 (54,417) 1,971,757 

TOT AL NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 19,976,239 27,217,569 47,193,808 

TOT AL NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 22,002,413 $ 27,163,152 $ 49,165,565 s 
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS· PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL \'EAR ENDED MA\' JI, 2018 

Business-Type Activities · Governmental 
Ente!]?rise Funds Activities -

Internal Service 
Water Electric Totals Fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Revenue collected: 

Cash received from charges for services s 5,745,064 s 25,764,945 s 31,510.009 s l ,888,354 
Cash received from insurance recoveries 133,185 
Internal activity-pn)ments to other funds for expense reimbursements 4,303 59,478 63,781 

Payments for expenses: 
Cash payments to other suppliers of goods or services (2,301,011) (17,646,790) (19,947,803) 
Cash payments to insurance carriers and claimants ( 1,307,985) 
Cash payments to employees for services and related expenses (993,920) (4,891 ,878) (5,885, 798) (953,177) 
Cash payments to customers on deposit · interest (l ,251) (1,251) 
Internal activity-payments to other funds for expense reimbursements (1,087) (1.473) (2,560) (39,785) 
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 2,453,349 3,283,031 5,736.380 (279,408) 

CASll FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of capital assets (3,955,444) (3,014,918) (6,970,362) 
Proceeds from capital debt 42,993 39,589 82,582 
Principal paid on capitol debt (1 ,597,993) ( 1,289,589) (2,887,582) 
Interest paid on capital debt (523,710) (298,685) (822.395) 
l'liet Cush Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (6.034.154) (4.563,603) (10,597,757) 

CASll FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest and rental income 488,256 105,523 593,779 25.013 
Net Cash Provided b} ln\·esting Activities 488,256 105,523 593,779 25,013 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (3,092,549) (I , 175,049) (4,267,598) (254,395) 

Cash and Cash Equivulents at Beginning of\' ear 5,585,199 8,863, 152 14,448,95 I 3.355,378 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of\' car s 2,493,250 s 7,688,103 s 10, 181 ,353 s 3,100,983 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASll 
PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Operating income (loss) s 2,022,249 s 102,705 s 2,124,954 s (25,013) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net 

cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 839,632 1,443,818 2,283,450 
Decrease (increase) in: 

Accounts receivable (750,405) (26,431) (776,836) 133,185 
Due from other funds 4,303 59,478 63,781 
Prepaid expenses (13,754) 
Inventory 16,562 21 ,368 37,930 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 125,857 697,237 823,o94 (47,132) 
Accrued liabilities 6,745 (18,840) ( 12,095) 
Due to other funds (l ,087) (1,473) (2,560) (39,785) 
Claims payable (286,909) 
Customer deposits 300 67,633 67,933 
Collections in advance 11 ,861 11,861 
Due to employees' retirement system (562) (5,307) (5,869) 
Compensated absences 48,522 254,733 303,255 
Pension amounts (9,363) 65,829 56,466 
Net other post-employment benefits obligations 138,735 622,281 761,016 

Net Cash Provided hy (Used in) Operating Acti\'ities s 2,453,349 s 3,283,031 s 5,736,380 s (279,408) 
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ASSETS 
Cash 

INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
MAY 31, 2018 

Agency 
Fund 

$ 491 ,737 
Investments-mutual funds, at fair value 
Accounts receivable 8,278 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 500,015 

Pension 
Trust 
Fund 

$ 
4,494,216 

$ 4,494,216 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Deposits 

$ 14,490 $ 

Other liabilities 
TOT AL LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION 
Net position restricted for pensions 

$ 
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317,979 
167,546 
500,015 $ ------

$ 4,494,216 



INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

ADDITIONS 
Interest and net change in fair value of investments 

TOT AL ADDITIONS 

DEDUCTIONS 
Pension benefits 

TOT AL DEDUCTIONS 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 
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$ 

Pension 
Trust 
Fund 

420,643 
420,643 

86,356 
86,356 

334,287 

4,159,929 

$ 4,494,216 



IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

A) General statement: 

The Village of Rockville Centre (the "Village") was incorporated pursuant to an act of the New York 
State Legislature in July 1893. The Village operates under a Board of Trustees form of government in 
accordance with New York State Village Law and the various other applicable laws of the State of New 
York. The Village Board of Trustees is the legislative body responsible for overall operation. The 
Village provides the following services to its residents: public safety, health, transportation, economic 
opportunity and development, culture and recreation, home and community services and general 
administrative support. 

The financial statements of the Village have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. Those principles are prescribed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

Certain significant accounting principles and policies utilized by the Village are described below: 

B) Financial reporting entity: 

The financial reporting entity is based on criteria set forth by GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial 
Reporting Entity and as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whelher Certain Organizations 
are Component Units and GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity; Omnibus- An 
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. The financial reporting entity consists of: (a) the 
primary government, which is the Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre, (b) organizations for which the 
primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the 
reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

The decision to include a potential component unit in the Village is based on several criteria, including legal 
standing, fiscal dependency and financial accountability. 

Based on the application criteria, the following is a summary of an entity that is accounted for as a blended 
component unit in the Village's basic financial statements. The Village of Rockville Centre Community 
Development Agency (the "Agency") is a separate public benefit corporation created by state legislation to 
promote the safety, health and welfare of the Village's inhabitants and to promote the sound growth and 
development of the Village. The Agency's management is designated by the Village Board and is 
substantively the same as the Village Board. The Village Board is financially accountable for the Agency. 
The Village acts as a pass-through entity for funding received from the Federal U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD) through contracts with the County of Nassau (the "County,,). Due to the 
nature and significance of the relationship between the Village and Agency, exclusion of this component 
unit would cause the financial statements to be misleading. Based on the application of these criteria, there 
are no other entities which would be included in the Village's reporting entity. 
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

C) Basis of presentation: 

The accounts of the Village are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an independent 
fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which comprise its assets, liabilities, fund 
balances/net assets, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Fund accounting segregates funds according to 
their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance related 
legal and contractual provisions. 

i) Government-Wide Financial Statements: 

The Government-Wide Financial Statements (The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) present information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. The 
effect of interfund activity, within the governmental activities column, has been removed from these 
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on 
fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain 
legally separate component units for which the primary government is financial accountable. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with 
a specific program. Indirect expenses, principally employee benefits, are allocated to functional 
areas in proportion to the payroll expended for those areas. Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given program and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions that are restricted 
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment and 3) interest 
earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program. Taxes and other items 
not identified as program revenues are reported as general revenues. 

ii) Fund Financial Statements: 

Fund Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds aggregated. An 
accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in fund balances and 
changes in fund balances as presented in these statements to the net position and changes in net position 
presented in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. The Village has presented all major funds 
that met those qualifications. 

The Village reports the following major governmental funds. 
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IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

Governmental Funds: 

General Fund - General fund is the main operating fund of the Village. This fund is used to 
account for all financial resources not accounted for in other funds. All general tax revenues and 
other receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other funds are 
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital 
improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the general fund. 

Capital Projects Fund - Capital projects fund is used to account for funds received and 
expended for the construction, renovation, expansion and major improvement of various Village 
facilities, thoroughfares, arterial streets and drainage improvements, improvements and 
construction of parks and recreational facilities and acquisition of land and other large 
nonrecurring projects. 

The Village also reports the following non-major governmental funds. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are established to account for the proceeds of 
specified revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for certain defined purposes. 
The special revenue funds of the Village are as follows: 

Community Development Fund - This blended component unit is used to account for 
projects financed primarily by entitlements from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development. 

Section 8 Housing Fund - This fund is used to account for resources received from the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development for housing assistance payment purposes. 
The fiscal year-end of the Section 8 Housing Fund is June 30, 2018. 

Special Puroose Fund - This fund is used to account for various cultural and recreation 
activities. Financing is provided by fees. 

Debt Service Fund - This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and the payment of 
principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental activities. 

iii) Proprietary Funds: 

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Fund Net Position, a Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows. 

The Village reports the following proprietary funds. 

Enterprise Fund - Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private enterprises or where the governing body has decided that 
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is necessary for 
management accountability. Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that 
provide services to the public. The operations of the electric utility and water utility funds are 
recorded as enterprise funds. 
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

Internal Service Fund - Internal service funds of the Village (which provide services 
primarily to other funds of the Village) are presented, in summary form, as part of the 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. Since the principal users of the internal services are 
the Village ' s governmental activities, financial activities of the internal service funds are 
presented in the governmental activities column when presented at the government-wide 
level. The costs of these services are allocated to the appropriate function/program (general 
government, public safety, education, public works, health and human services, and culture 
and recreation) in the Statement of Activities. The Village has established its risk 
management activities for general liability, workers' compensation and unemployment 
benefits in an internal service fund. 

iv) Fiduciary Funds: 

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of 
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the Village in 
a trustee or custodial capacity. These activities are not included in the Government-Wide Financial 
Statement, because their resources do not belong to the Village, and are not available to be used. The 
Village has represented the following fiduciary funds: 

Agency Fund - This fund is strictly custodial in nature and does not involve the measurement of 
results of operations. Assets are held by the Village as an agent for payroll liabilities, bid 
deposits, and tickets related to the justice court. 

Pension Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for investments for the Fire Service Length 
of Service Award Program (Defined contribution pension plan) and is strictly custodial in nature 
and does not involve the measurement of results of operations. 

D) Measurement focus and basis of accounting: 

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues and 
expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of 
accounting is related to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus 
applied. The Section 8 Housing Fund is recorded on the accrual basis of accounting. 

The Government-Wide Financial Statements, Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements and Proprietary Fund 
Financial Statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time 
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash transaction takes place. Nonexchange 
transactions, in which the Village gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving equal 
value in exchange, include property taxes, grants and donations. Under the accrual basis revenues are 
recognized when earned, including unbilled services which are accrued. 
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

The Fund Financial Statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and 
are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting (with the exception of the Section 8 
Housing Fund). Under the modified accrual method of accounting revenues are recognized when 
measurable and available. "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and 
"available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period. The Village considers property taxes as available if they are collected 
within 60 days after year-end. A 60-day availability period is used for recognition of all other 
governmental fund revenues (with the exception of the Section 8 Housing Fund). 

The revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, charges for services, 
interest income and intergovernmental revenues. Fines collected and held by the state at year-end on 
behalf of the government are also recognized as revenues. All other governmental fund revenues are 
recognized when received. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. 
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, claims 
and judgments, net of pension liability, and net other post-employment benefit obligations are recorded 
only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are 
reported as other financing sources. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund's 
principal ongoing operation. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds and the internal 
service fund are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds and the 
internal service fund include the costs of services, administrative expenses, depreciation costs and 
benefit costs. All revenues and expenses not meeting the definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued on or 
before November 30, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund 
financial statements to the extent that they do not conflict or contradict guidance of the GASB. 
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private sector guidance for their business 
type activities and enterprise funds. The Village has elected to not follow subsequent private sector 
guidance. 

E) Restricted resources: 

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are 
available, the Village's policy concerning which to apply first varies with the intended use, and with 
associated legal requirements, many of which are described elsewhere in these Notes. 

F) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. 
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and assumptions are made in a variety of areas, 
including potential contingent liabilities, useful lives of capital assets, net pension liabilities, and other 
post-employment benefits. 
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IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

G) Cash and cash equivalents: 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Village considers all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The Statement of Cash Flows 
is presented used the direct method. Certain cash balances are restricted by various legal and 
contractual obligations such as legal reserves, grants and debt agreements. 

H) Taxes receivable: 

Real property tax rates are set by the Board prior to May 1st, signed by the Mayor no later than May 31st and 
become an enforceable lien on real property as of June 151

• Property taxes are due in two installments 
during June and December without penalty. 

I) Other receivables: 

Other receivables include amounts due from other governments and individuals for services provided by 
the Village. Receivables are recorded and revenues recognized as earned or as specific program 
expenditures/expenses are incurred. Allowances are reported when accounts are deemed to be 
uncollectible. 

J) Prepaid expenses/expenditures: 

Prepaid expenses/expenditures consist of insurance costs which have been satisfied prior to the end of the 
fiscal year, but represent items which have been provided for in the subsequent year's budget and/or will 
benefit such periods. 

K) Inventory: 

The inventories reflected in the Proprietary Funds are stated at cost. Purchases of inventoriable items at 
other locations are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year-end balances at these locations 
are not material. 

L) Intcrfund transactions: 

The operations of the Village include transactions between funds. These transactions may be temporary 
in nature, such as with interfund borrowings. The Village typically loans resources between funds for 
the purpose of providing cash flow. These interfund receivables and payables are expected to be repaid 
within one year. Permanent transfers of funds include the transfer of expenditure and revenues to 
provide financing or other services. 

The governmental funds report all interfund transactions as originally recorded. Interfund receivables 
and payables may be netted on the accompanying governmental funds balance sheet when it is the 
Village's practice to settle these amounts at a net balance based upon the right of legal offset. 
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Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to interfund 
activities, payables and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been 
eliminated except those representing balances between governmental activities and the business-type 
activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government 
column. In the Statement of Activities, internal service fund transactions have been eliminated; 
however, those transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been 
eliminated. 

Refer to Note 15 for a detailed disclosure by individual fund for interfund receivables, payables, 
expenditures and revenues activity. 

M) Capital assets: 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the Government-Wide Financial 
Statements and in the Fund Financial Statements for the proprietary funds. All capital assets are valued 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if the actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital 
assets, donated works of art and similar items, as well as capital assets received in a concession 
arrangement are reported at acquisition value rather than fair value. Repairs and maintenance are 
recorded as expenses. Renewals and betterments are capitalized. Interest has not been capitalized 
during the construction period on property, plant or equipment. 

Assets capitalized, not including infrastructure assets, have an original cost of $5,000 or more and over 
one year of useful life. Infrastructure assets capitalized have an original cost of $5,000 or more. In the 
case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e. those reported by governmental 
activities), the Village chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition date or amount. 
The Village was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets through back 
trending (i.e. estimating the current replace cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and used an 
appropriate price level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated acquisition year). 

Depreciation has been calculated on each class of depreciable property using the straight-line method. 
Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Buildings and equipment 
Infrastructure 
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N) Deferred outflows of resources: 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Village has two items that qualify for 
reporting in this category. The first is a deferred charge on refunding in the Government-Wide Financial 
Statements which represents the unamortized portion of the deferred charge on refunding. These costs 
are being amortized over the term of the respective bond issue. The second item is related to pensions 
reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position. This represents the difference between 
expected and actual experience (ERS and PFRS), changes of assumptions (ERS and PFRS), the net 
difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments (ERS and PFRS), the 
changes in proportion and differences between the Village's contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions (ERS and PFRS), and the Village's contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
(ERS and PFRS). 

0) Deferred inflows of resources: 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Village has one item that qualifies for reporting in 
this category. The item is related to pensions reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Net 
Position. This represents the effect of the net difference between expected and actual experience (ERS 
and PFRS), the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments (ERS 
and PFRS), and the changes in proportion and differences between the Village's contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions (ERS and PFRS). 

P) Collections in advance: 

Collections in advance arise when the Village receives resources before it has legal claim to them. In 
the general fund, monies received in advance were primarily for service assistance payments for the next 
fiscal year. In the proprietary funds, monies are received before services are delivered. In subsequent 
periods, when the recognition criteria are met, or when the Village has legal claim to the resources, the 
liability for collections in advance is removed and revenues are recorded. 

Q) V csted employee benefits: 

Compensated absences: 

Compensated absences consist of unpaid accumulated annual sick leave, vacation and terminal 
leave. 

Sick leave eligibility and accumulation is specified in negotiated labor contracts. Upon retirement or 
death, police officers may contractually receive a payment for a portion of their unused accumulated 
sick leave. 
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The Village employees are granted vacation in varying amounts, based primarily on length of 
service and contracts. Some earned benefits may be forfeited if not taken within varying time 
periods. 

Consistent with GASB Statement No. I 6, Accounting for Compensated Absences, the liability has 
been calculated using the vesting method and an accrual for that liability is included in the 
Government-Wide and the Proprietary Financial Statements. The compensated absences liability is 
calculated based on the pay rates as mandated in employee contracts in effect at year end. 

R) Other benefits: 

Village employees participate in the New York State Employees' Retirement System and the New York 
State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System. In addition to providing pension benefits, the 
Village provides post-employment health insurance coverage and survivor benefits for retired 
employees and their survivors in accordance with the provision of various employment contracts in 
effect at the time of retirement. Pursuant to contractual provisions Village's employees may become 
eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Village. Health care 
benefits are provided through plans whose premiums are based on the benefits paid during the year. The 
Village recognizes the cost of providing health insurance by recording its share of insurance premiums 
as an expenditure. In the Government-Wide and Business-Type Financial Statements, the cost of 
postemployment health insurance coverage is recognized on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 45 . 

S) Short-term debt: 

The Village may issue Bond Anticipation Notes (BAN), in anticipation of proceeds from the subsequent 
sale of bonds. These notes are recorded as current liabilities of the funds that will actually receive the 
proceeds from the issuance of bonds. State law requires that BANs issued for capital purposes be 
converted to long-term financing within five years after the original issue dated. The Village does not 
have any short-term debt at May 31, 2018. 

T) Accrued liabilities and long-term obligations: 

Payables, accrued liabilities and Jong-term obligations are reported in the Government-Wide Financial 
Statements. In the governmental funds, payables and accrued liabilities are paid in a timely manner and 
in full from current financial resources. Claims and judgments, compensated absences, net pension 
liabilities, and net other post-employment benefits obligations that will be paid from governmental 
funds, are reported as a liability in the Funds Financial Statements only to the extent that they are due for 
payment in the current year. Bonds and other long-term obligations that will be paid from governmental 
funds are recognized as a liability in the Fund Financial Statements when due. Bonds payable are 
reported inclusive of applicable bond premiums. Bond issuance costs are recognized as an 
expenditure/outflow of resources when incurred. 
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In the fund statements, only that portion of long-term obligations expected to be financed from 
expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability. The face amount of the debt 
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other 
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, 
whether or not withheld from actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

On the Government-Wide Financial Statements, premiums related to the issuance of long-debt are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the issue and are presented as part of the general 
obligation bonds payable in the non-current liabilities. 

Long-term obligations represent the Village's future obligations or future economic outflows. The 
liabilities are reported as due in one year or due within more than one year in the Statement of Net 
Position. 

U) Equity classifications: 

i) Government-Wide Financial Statements: 

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements there are three classes of net position: 

Net investment in capital assets - consists of net capital assets (cost less accumulated depreciation) 
reduced by outstanding balances of related debt obligations from the acquisition, construction or 
improvement of those assets including any deferred outflows or inflows of resources related to the 
outstanding debt, and excluding any unspent debt proceeds. 

Restricted net position - reports net position when constraints placed on the assets are either 
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), granters, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments, or imposed by Jaw through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 

Unrestricted net position (deficit) - reports all other net position that do not meet the definition of 
the above two classifications and are deemed to be available for general use by the Village. 

ii) Fund Financial Statements: 

In the Fund Financial Statements, there are three classifications of fund balance presented: 

( 1) Restricted fund balance - Includes amounts with constraints placed on the use of resources either 
externally imposed by creditors, granters, contributors or laws or regulations of other 
governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The 
Village has classified the following as restricted: 
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Capital Non-Major 
General Projects Governmental 

Restricted for: Fund Fund Funds 
Capital projects $ $ 942,682 $ 

Unspent bond proceeds 1,514,555 
Employee benefit 

accrued liability I, 124,830 
Debt service 363,874 
Section 8 housing 44,504 

Special purpose-culture and 
recreation and public safety 142,853 

Total $ 1,1241830 $ 2,457,237 $ 551,231 

Total 
$ 942,682 

1,514,555 

1,124,830 
363,874 
44,504 

142,853 
$ 41133,298 

The restricted fund balance in the special purpose fund (special purpose) may only be used for 
recreational and police programs. 

(2) Assigned fund balance - As per the Village's fund balance policy, this includes amounts that are 
constrained by the Village's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor 
committed. This intent can be expressed by the Board or through the Board delegating this 
responsibility to the Village management through Board policies. The purchasing agent, 
comptroller and the Board of Trustees have the responsibility to assign fund balance per their 
fund balance policy. This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all 
governmental funds except for the general fund. The Village has classified the following as 
assigned: 

Assigned fur: 

Tax certiorari 
General support 
Public safety 
Transportation 

Culture & recreation 

Community development 
Total 

Encumbrances 

General 
Fund 

$ 2,024,956 

167,493 
70,191 

31, 136 
7,066 

8,805 

$ 2,309,647 

Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds 
$ 

2,074 

$ 2,074 

Total 
$ 2,024,956 

167,493 

70, 191 

31,136 

7,066 
10,879 

$ 2,311,721 

Encumbrances have been assigned based upon the Village's intent to be used for a specific 
purpose such as general support, public safety, transportation, and culture and recreation. See 
Note 3 for further detail regarding accountability and Note 18 for further detail regarding 
significant encumbrances. 
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The Village has adopted a fund balance policy which authorizes the Board or their designated 
official to assign amounts for a specific purpose. Additionally, the Board of Trustees shall 
delegate the authority to assign fund balance, for encumbrance purposes, to the purchasing agent 
who has the delegated authority to sign purchase orders. 

(3) Unassigned fund balance - Includes the residual fund balance for the general fund and includes 
residual fund balance deficits of any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by 
offsetting of assigned fund balance amounts. Assignments of fund balance cannot cause a 
negative unassigned fund balance Unassigned fund balance includes $6,845,257 in the general 
fund and a deficit of $1,533,315 in the capital fund that represent projects that have been 
overspent or are waiting on funding. 

Order of Use of Fund Balance 

In circumstances where an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which amounts are available 
in multiple fund balance classifications (e.g., expenditures related to reserves), the expenditure is 
to be spent first from the restricted fund balance to the extent appropriated by either budget vote 
or board approved budget revision and then from unrestricted fund balance. Expenditures 
incurred in unrestricted fund balances shall be applied first to the assigned fund balance to the 
extent there is an assignment and then to the unassigned balance. 

V) New accounting standards: 

The Village has adopted and implemented GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting/or Pensions and Related Assets that are not within the Scope o/GASB No. 68; which became 
effective for financial statements beginning after June 15, 2016. The objective of this statement is to 
improve the usefulness of information about pensions included in the general purpose external financial 
reports of state and local governments. The Statement establishes requirements for defined contribution 
pension plans that do not fall within the scope of GASB No. 68, Accounting and Reporting/or Pensions. 
The District has concluded that it's Length of Service Award Program (LOSAP), although technically 
not a pension falls within the scope of GASB No. 73. 

W) Future changes in accounting standards: 

GASB has issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions, effective for the year ending May 31, 2019. This statement replaces the 
requirements of Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporling by Employers for 
Poslemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent 
Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new accounting and financial 
reporting requirements for OPEB plans. 
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GASB has issued Statement No. 83, Cerlain Assel Retirement Ob/igalions, effective for fiscal year 
ended May 31, 2020, which provides guidance for the reporting of certain legally enforceable liabilities 
associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. 

GASB has issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, effective for the fiscal year ended May 31, 
2020. It provides guidance for identifying fiduciary activities, primarily based on whether the 
government is controlling the assets, and the beneficiaries with whom the fiduciary relationship exists, 
and on how different fiduciary activities should be reported. 

GASB has issued Statement No. 87, Leases, effective for fiscal year ended May 31, 2021. This 
Statement establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the idea that leases are financings of 
the right-to-use an underlying asset. As such, under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a 
lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and the lessor is required to recognize a lease 
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. 

These are the statements that the Village feels may have an impact on these financial statements and are 
not an all-inclusive list of GASB statements issued. The Village will evaluate the impact each of these 
pronouncements may have on its financial statements and will implement them as applicable and when 
material. 

NOTE 2 - EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN FUND STATEMENTS AND 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS: 

Due to the differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting used in the Fund Financial 
Statements and the Government-Wide Financial Statements, certain financial transactions are treated 
differently. The basic financial statements contain a full reconciliation of these items. The differences 
result primarily from the economic focus of the Statement of Activities, compared with the current 
financial resources focus of the governmental funds. 

A) Total fund balances of governmental funds vs. net position of governmental activities: 

Total fund balances of the Village's governmental funds differ from net position of governmental 
activities reported in the Statement of Net Position. The difference primarily results from the additional 
long-term economic focus of the Statement of Net Position versus the solely current financial resources 
focus of the governmental fund Balance Sheets. 

B) Statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances vs. statement of activities: 

Differences between the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances and the Statement of Activities fall into one of the three broad categories. The amounts shown 
below represent: 

i) Long-term revenue and expense differences: 

Long-term revenue differences arise because governmental funds report revenues only when they are 
considered "available", whereas the Statement of Activities reports revenues when earned. 
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Differences in long-tenn expenses arise because governmental funds report on a modified accrual 
basis, whereas the accrual basis of accounting is used on the Statement of Activities. 

ii) Capital related differences: 

Capital related differences include the difference between proceeds for the sale of capital assets 
reported on fund financial statements and the gain or loss on the sale of assets reported on the 
Statement of Activities, and the difference between recording an expenditure for the purchase of 
capital items in the fund financial statements and depreciation expense on those items as recorded in 
the Statement of Activities. 

iii) Long-term debt differences: 

Long-tenn debt differences occur because both interest and principal payments are recorded as 
expenditures in the fund financial statements, whereas interest payments are recorded in the 
Statement of Activities as incurred, and principal payments are recorded as a reduction of liabilities 
in the Statement of Net Position. 

NOTE 3 - STEW ARDS HIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNT ABILITY: 

A) Budgetary data: 

The Village generally follows the procedures enumerated below in establishing the budgetary data 
reflected in the financial statements. 

i) On or before March 201h, the budget officer submits to the Village Clerk a tentative operating budget 
for the fiscal year commencing the following June I st. The tentative budget includes the proposed 
expenditures and means of financing. 

ii) The Village Clerk then submits the tentative budget to the Village Board of Trustees, on or before 
March 31 51

• 

iii) The Board of Trustees conducts a public hearing on the tentative budget to obtain taxpayer 
comments on or before April 15th. 

iv) After the public hearing and on or before May l51, the Trustees meet to consider and adopt the 
budget. 

v) Fonnal budgetary integration is employed during the year as a management control device for the 
general and debt service funds. 

vi) Budgets for the general and debt service funds are legally adopted annually on a basis consistent 
with generally accepted accounting principles. The capital projects fund is budgeted on a project 
basis. Annual budgets are not adopted for the Community Development, Section 8 Housing, Special 
Purpose or Proprietary funds. 

vii) The Village Board has established legal control of the budget at the function level of expenditures. 
Transfers between appropriation accounts, at the function level, require approval by the Board of 
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Trustees. Any modifications to appropriations resulting from increases in revenue estimates or 
supplemental appropriations also require a majority vote by the Board. 

viii) Appropriations in the general and debt service funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year, except that 
outstanding encumbrances are re-appropriated in the succeeding year, pursuant to the Uniform 
System of Accounts promulgated by the Office of the State Comptroller. 

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Board of Trustees. Individual 
amendments for the current year were not material in relation to the original appropriations which were 
amended. 

B) Property tax limitation: 

The Village is authorized by the State Constitution to levy taxes the lower of 2% or the rate of inflation, 
of the five-year average full valuation of taxable real estate located within the Village and any amounts 
appropriated for debt service. In accordance with this definition, the maximum amount of the levy for 
2017-2018 was $81,951,091 which exceeded the actual levy by $56,749,338. 

C) Encumbrances: 

Encumbrance accounting is used for budget control and monitoring purposes and is reported as a part of 
the governmental funds. Under this method, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the 
expenditure of monies are recorded to assign applicable appropriations. Outstanding encumbrances as of 
year-end do not represent expenditures or liabilities. These commitments will be honored in the 
subsequent period. Related expenditures are recognized at that time, as the liability is incurred or the 
commitment is paid. 

NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS: 

A) Cash 

The Village's investment policies are governed by New York State statutes. In addition, the Village is 
required to have its own written investment policy. Village monies must be deposited in FDIC-insured 
commercial banks or trust companies located within the state. The Treasurer is authorized to use demand 
accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of 
the U.S. treasury and U.S. agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of New York State or its 
localities. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Village's deposits may not be returned 
to it. While the Village does not have a specific policy for custodial credit risk, New York State statutes 
govern the Village's investment policies, as discussed previously in these Notes. 

All of the Village's aggregate bank balances were covered by depository insurance or collateralized with 
securities held by pledging financial institutions in the Village's name at year end. None were exposed to 
custodial credit risk as described above at year end. 
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Restricted cash represents cash and cash equivalents where use is limited by legal requirements. These 
assets represent amounts required by statute to be reserved for various purposes. Restricted cash as of May 
31 , 2018 includes $3,252, 176 in the governmental funds. 

B) Investments 

Investments in the Pension Trust Fund are stated at fair market value. These investments are not subject to 
risk categorization. See note 14 for additional information. 

NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES: 

Receivable balances have been disaggregated by type and presented separately in the financial statements. 
Receivables with allowances for uncollectible accounts as of May 31, 2018 are presented below. 

General Fund Water Fund Electric Fund Section 8 
Taxes Accounts Accounts Accounts Accounts 

Receivable Receivable Receivable Receivable Receivable 

Gross receivables $ 22,300 $ 332,180 $ 3, 188,302 $ 3,785,437 $ 29,368 
Less: allowance for 
uncollectibles (22,006) (142,524) (2,524) (359,996) (7,342) 

Net receivables $ 294 $ 189,656 $ 3,185,778 $ 3,425,441 $ 22,026 

NOTE 6 - ST ATE AND FEDERAL AID RECEIVABLES: 

State and federal aid receivables at May 31, 2018 consisted of the following: 

General Fund 
Due from State & Federal aid $ 118,522 

Capital Fund 
Due from State 58,481 

Total - Governmental funds $ 177,003 

Village management has deemed these amounts to be fully collectible. 
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NOTE 7 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS: 

Due from other governments at May 31, 2018 consisted of the following: 

General Fund 
Due from Nassau County - mortgage tax 

Community Development Fund 
Due from Nassau County 

Total - Goverrunental funds 

$ 157,749 

51 ,404 

$ 209,153 

Village management has deemed these amounts to be fully collectible. 
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NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS: 

The breakdown by major asset groups at May 31 , 2018 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 

eolw:is.:!.: Additions Transfers Di;?12QS!!l:i Balance 

Govcrnmcntnl Activities: 

Capital assets , not being depreciated 

Land $ 4,576,378 $ $ $ $ 4,576,378 

Construction-in-progress 17,384,793 5,042,802 (857,771) 21,569,824 

Total capital ussets, not being depreciated 21,961.171 5,042,802 (857,771) $ 26,146,202 

Capital assets, being depreciated 

Building and equipment 37,309,888 286 ,253 857,771 (805,900) 37,648,012 

Infrastructure 43 , 100,541 937,643 (35,500) 44,002,684 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 80.410,429 1,223,896 857,771 (84 I ,400) 81,650,696 

Less uccumulatcd depreciation for 

Buildings and equipment 14,172,817 1,343,527 (805,900) 14,710,444 

In fr as true ture 21,013.436 2,070,091 (35,500) 23,048,027 

Total accumulated depreciation 35,186,253 3,413,618 (841 ,400) 37,758,471 

Totul capital assets being depreciated, net 45,244,176 (2,189,722) 857,771 4 3 ,892,225 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $67. 185,347 $ 2,853,080 $ $ $ 70,038,427 

Business-Type Activities: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated 

Land $ 3 75,885 $ $ $ $ 375,885 

Construction-in-progress 12,112,373 8,594, l 90 (9,239,671) (J.633,145) 9,833,747 

Tota l capital assets, not being depreciated 12,488,258 8 ,594 , 190 (9,239,671) (1,633,145) 10,209,632 

Capital assets, being depreciated 

Building and equipment I 00,095,665 9,239,671 (1,073,176) I 08,262, I 60 

Total capital assets, being depreciated I 00,095,665 9,239,671 (1.073 , 176) 108,262, 160 

Less accumulated depreciation for 

Buildings and equipment 44,031,787 2,283,450 ( 1,082.493) 45,232,744 

Total accumulated depreciation 44,031 ,787 2,283,450 (1,082.493) 45 ,232,744 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 56,063,878 (2,283,450) 9,239,671 9,317 63,029,416 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $68,552,136 $ 6,310,740 $ S (I ,623,828) $ 73,239,048 
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Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows: 

General support $ 195,253 
Public safety 484,674 
Transportation 2,224,615 
Culture and recreation 370,951 
Home and community services 138, 125 

Total $ 3,413,618 

NOTE 9 - DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 

The deferred charge on refunding, as recorded in the Government-Wide Financial Statements as a 
deferred outflow of resources, as of May 31, 2018 consisted of the following: 

Loss on defeasance 

Total deferred charge on refunding 

Governmental Business-Type 

$ 

$ 

Activities Activities 

145,824 $ 171,204 -----'---
145,824 =$===17=1=,2=04= 

The loss on defeasance pertaining to the 2012 refunding as recorded in the Government-Wide Financial 
Statements is being amortized using the straight-line method over 8 years, the time to maturity of the 
defeased bonds, at the time of refunding, as a component of interest expense. 

NOTE to-SHORT-TERM DEBT: 

The Village did not issue or retire any short-term debt during the year. 
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NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES: 

Long-term liability balances and activity for the year are summarized below: 

Beginning Reclassedl EOOing D.ie Within 
&lance Redeerred Balance QleYear 

Primary Government 
Governmental activities: 
General obligation debt: 
Bonds payable $ 30,735,000 $ $ 3,280,000 $ 27,455,000 $ 3,460,000 
Premiums 812,540 113,993 698,547 113,993 

Total bonds payable 31,547,540 3,393,993 28,153,547 3,573,993 

Other liabilities: 
Claims payable 3,389,753 812,268 1,099,177 3,102,844 1,318,344 
Compensated absences 11,649,923 1,794,674 1,402,449 12,042,148 1,515,187 
Net pension liability- proportionate 

share 8,049,908 4,746,570 3,303,338 
Net other post-employment 
benefits obligations 35,282,212 7,446,273 2,120,228 40,608,257 
Total other liabilities 58,371,796 9,240,947 8,269,247 55,953,743 1,515,187 

Total Governmental activities 89,919,336 9,240,947 11,663,240 84,107,290 5,089,180 

Business-Type Activities 
General obligation debt: 
Bonds payable 29,995,000 2,805,000 27,190,000 2,660,000 
Premiums 839,795 82,582 757,213 82,581 
Total bonds payable 30,834,795 2,887,582 27,947,213 2,742,581 

Other liabilities: 
Compensated absences 2,200,404 415,993 112,738 2,503,659 62,591 
Net pension liability- proportionate 

share 1,390,988 885,162 505,826 
Net other post-employment 
benefit obligations 5,352,069 1,100,939 339,923 6,113,085 
Total other liabilities 8,943,461 1,516,932 1,337,823 9,122,570 62,591 

Total Business-Type activities 39,778,256 1,516,932 4,225,405 37,069,783 2,805,172 

Total Primary Government $ 129,697,592 $ 10,757,879 $ 15,888,645 $ 121,177,073 $ 7,894,352 
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Governmental fund liabilities for bonds are liquidated by the debt service fund, which is funded 
primarily by the general fund. The general fund has typically been used to liquidate long-term liabilities 
for the governmental activities for claims, compensated absences, net pension liability and net other 
post-employment benefit obligations. The water and electric funds are typically used to liquidate long­
term liabilities for business-type activities for bonds payable, compensated absences, and net other post­
employment benefit obligations based upon their respective obligations. 

General Obligation Bonds 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations issued on a pledge of the general trucing power for the 
payment of the debt obligations of the Village. General obligation bonds require the Village to compute, 
at the time other truces are levied, the rate of true required to provide (in each year bonds are outstanding) 
a fund to pay interest and principal at maturity. The Village is in compliance with this requirement. 

Arbitrage provisions of the Internal Revenue True Act of 1986 require the Village to rebate excess 
arbitrage earnings from bond proceeds to the federal government. There were no excess arbitrage 
earnings for the year ended May 31, 2018. 

Existing serial and statutory bond obligations at May 31, 2018 were comprised of the following for 
governmental activities, exclusive of premiums: 

Original 
Year of Issue Final Interest Outstanding 

Pu!Eose Issue Amount Maturit~ Rate at Year End 

Public Improvements 2008 $ 825,000 October 2023 4.25-4.50% $ 270,000 
Public Improvements 2009 4,295,000 December 2024 2.00-3.75% l,560,000 
Public Improvements 2010 3,715,000 February 2026 2.00-3.875% 1,675,000 
Refunding Bonds 2012 650,000 June 2019 2.00-3.00% 180,000 
Refunding Bonds 2012 495,000 June 2018 2.00-3.00% 95,000 
Refunding Bonds 2012 885,000 June 2019 2.00-3.00% 280,000 
Refunding Bonds 2012 855,000 June 2020 2.00-3.00% 420,000 
Refunding Bonds 2012 1,205,000 June 2021 2.00-3.00% 800,000 
Refunding Bonds 2012 1,780,000 June 2022 2.00-4.00% 1,480,000 
Public Improvements 2012 2,480,000 August 2027 1.50-3.00% l,495,000 
Serial Bond Retirement 

System Contribution 2013 220,000 October 2018 3.00% 45,000 
Public Improvements 2013 7,715,000 October 2028 2.00-3.00% 5,555,000 
Public Improvements 2015 8,760,000 February 2030 2.00-3.00% 6,780,000 
Public Improvements 2016 2,810,000 February 2031 2.00-3.00% 2,320,000 
Public Improvements 2017 4,500,000 June 2032 3.00% 4,500,000 

$ 41,190,000 $ 27,455,000 
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Existing serial and statutory bond obligations at May 31, 2018 were comprised of the following for 
business-type activities, exclusive of premiums: 

Original 
Year of Issue Final Interest Outstanding 

Pu!Eose Issue Amount Maturity Rate at Year End 
Water Fund 

General Improvements 1993 $ 2,700,000 September 2018 4.85-5.00% $ 100,000 
General Improvements 2008 2,000,000 October 2023 4.25-4.50% 780,000 
General Improvements 2009 1,200,000 December 2024 2.00-3.75% 560,000 
General Improvements 2011 2,000,000 February 2026 2.00-3.875% 1, 125,000 
General Improvements 2012 4,500,000 August 2027 1.50-3.00% 3,005,000 
Refunding Bonds 2012 1,370,000 June 2021 2.00-4.00% 765,000 
General Improvements 2013 400,000 October 2028 2.00-3 .00% 320,000 
Public Improvements 2015 2,700,000 February 2030 2.00-3.00% 2,160,000 
Public Improvements 2016 6,600,000 February 2031 2.00-3.00% 5,755,000 
Public Improvements 2017 3,700,000 June 2032 3.00% 3,700,000 

Electric Fund 
General Improvements 2009 1,000,000 December 2024 2.00-3.75% 480,000 
General Improvements 2011 1,400,000 February 2026 2.00-3.875% 800,000 
General Improvements 2012 1,250,000 August 2027 1.50-3.00% 850,000 
Refunding Bonds 2012 3,505,000 June 2027 2.00-4.00% 2,540,000 
Public Improvements 2015 3,000,000 February 2030 2.00-3.00% 2,400,000 
Public Improvements 2016 750,000 February 2031 2.00-3.00% 650,000 
Public Improvements 2017 1,200,000 June 2032 3.00% 1,200,000 

$ 39,275,000 $ 27,190,000 

The premiums on the 2017, 2016, and 2015 bonds of $442,257, $105,371 , and $149,994, respectively, 
are being amortized using the straight-line method over 15 years, the time to maturity for each of the 
bonds. 

The premium on bond refunding pertaining to the 2012 refunding and the 2012 serial bond, as recorded 
in the Government-Wide Financial Statements, are being amortized using the straight-line method over 
11 years and 15 years, respectively, the time to maturity of the 2012 refunded bond and the 2012 serial 
bond. 
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The following is a summary of debt service requirements for bonds payable: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending Governmental Acitivites Business-T:z'.Ee Acitivies Total 

Ma:z'. 31. PrinciEal Interest PrinciEal Interest 
2019 $ 3,460,000 $ 729,813 2,660,000 741,008 
2020 3,275,000 635,213 2,600,000 669,008 
2021 2,850,000 548, 138 2,640,000 595,908 
2022 2,565,000 472,001 2,595,000 523,220 
2023 2,375,000 405,075 2,470,000 453, 183 

2024-2028 9,385,000 1,215,277 10,330,000 1,318,446 
2029-2032 3,545z000 195.975 3,895,000 244,850 

$27,455,000 $ 4,201,492 $ 27.190,000 $ 4,545,623 

Interest on Jong-term debt for the year was composed of: 

Interest paid 
Less interest accrued in the prior year 
Plus interest accrued in the current year 
Plus amortization of deferred charge 
Less amortization of premiums 

Total expense 

NOTE 12- PENSION PLANS: 

A) Plan description and benefits provided: 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 819,619 

(239,353) 

206,083 

72,911 

(113,993) 

$ 745,267 

PrinciEal 
6, 120,000 
5,875,000 
5,490,000 
5, 160,000 
4,845,000 

19,715,000 
7,440,000 

$ 541645,000 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 822,395 

(259,808) 

230,135 

36,836 

(82,582) 

$ 746,976 

Employees' Retirement System and Police and Fire Retirement System 

Interest 
1,470,821 
1,304,221 
1,144,046 

995,221 
858,258 

2,533,723 
440,825 

$ 8,747,115 

Primary 
Government 
$ 1,642,014 

(499, I 61) 

436,218 

109,747 

(196,575) 

$ 1,492,243 

The Village participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System (ERS) and the 
New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS), which are collectively referred to 
as the New York State and Local Retirement System (the System). These are cost-sharing multiple -
employer defined benefit pension plans. The System provides retirement benefits as well as death and 
disability benefits. The net position of the System is held in the New York State Common Retirement 
Fund (the Fund), which was established to hold all new assets and record changes in plan net position 
allocated to the System. 
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The Comptroller of the State of New York serves as the trustee of the Fund and is the administrative 
head of the System. System benefits are established under the provisions of the New York State 
Retirement and Social Security Law (RSSL). Once a public employer elects to participate in the 
System, the election is irrevocable. The New York State Constitution provides that pension membership 
is a contractual relationship and plan benefits cannot be diminished or impaired. Benefits can be 
changed for future members only by enactment of a State statute. The Village also participates in the 
Public Employees' Group Life Insurance Plan (GLIP) which provides death benefits in the form of life 
insurance. The System is included in the State's financial report as a pension trust fund. That report, 
including information with regard to benefits provided, may be found at 
www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/index.php or obtained by writing to the New York State and 
Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany NY 12244. 

B) Funding policies: 

The System is noncontributory, except as follows: 

a. Employees who joined the system after July 27, 1976 
i. Employees contribute 3% of their salary, except that employees in the system more 

than ten years are no longer required to contribute. 
b. Employees who joined the system on or after January 1, 2010 before April l, 2012 

i. Employees contribute 3% of their salary throughout active membership. 
c. Employees who joined the system on or after April 1, 2012 

1. Employees contribute between 3% and 6% dependent upon their salary throughout 
active membership. 

The Comptroller certifies the rates expressed as proportions of members' payroll annually which are used in 
computing the contributions required to be made by employers to the pension accumulation fund. 

The Village is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The Village contributions made to 
the Systems were equal to 100% of the contributions required for each year. The required contributions for 
the current year and two preceding years were as follows: 

2018 
2017 
2016 

ERS 
$1,941,494 
$ 2,010, 172 
$ 2, 172, 165 

PFRS 
$ 2,034,338 
$ 2,104,640 
$ 1,694,871 

The PFRS contribution was charged to the general fund. 
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The current ERS contribution was charged as follows: 

Fund Amount 
General $ 1,275,347 
Water 97,040 
Electric 569,107 

$ 1,941,494 

As detailed above, the general fund, water fund, and electric fund have typically been used to liquidate 
the net pension obligation. 

C) Pension assets, liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows and inflows of resources related 
to pensions: 

At May 31 , 2018, the Village reported the following liability for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability for each of the Systems. The net pension liability was measured as of March 31, 2018 
for ERS and PFRS. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined 
by an actuarial valuation. The Village's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection 
of the Village's Jong-term share of contributions to the Systems relative to the projected contributions of 
all participating members, actuarially determined. This information was provided by the ERS and PFRS 
Systems in reports provided to the Village. 

Measurement date 
Net pension liability 
Village's portion of the Plan's total 

net pension liability 
Change in proportion since prior 

measurement date 

$ 

ERS 
March 31, 2018 

(1,477,728) $ 

0.0457863% 

(0.0009573)% 

Community 
Develo[!ment 

eERS ERS 
March 3 I , 2018 March 31 , 2018 

(2,321,046) $ (10,390) 

0.2296344% 0.0003219% 

(0.0129486%) 0.0000999% 

For the year ended May 31, 2018, the Village recognized pension expense of $1,971,890 for ERS and 
$2,332,985 for PFRS. At May 31, 2018 the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
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Def~n~d Qutflo~s o[ Reso1.m•es Deferred Inflows of Resour~es 
ERs.. f.ERS.. ERs.. ffR.S_ 

Differences between expected 
and actual experience $ 530,764 $ 955,319 $ 438,603 $ 616,755 

Changes of assumptions 986,746 1,758,613 

Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan investments 2,161,374 1,878,615 4,266,336 3,783,428 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
the Village's contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions 451,007 314,795 51 ,069 147,721 

Village's contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 3322992 343,565 

$ 4z462,883 $ 5z250,907 $417561008 $415471904 

The Village allocated pension liability, pension expense, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions and the contributions between Governmental and Business-type 
activities based on reported salaries for each activity. 

Village contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ended May 31, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 

ERS fER£ 
Plan Year ended: 

2019 $ 491,391 $ 591,048 

2020 362,574 537,994 

2021 (l,002,162) (498,996) 

2022 (477,920) (354,406) 

2023 83,798 
$ ~626, 117} $ 359,438 

so 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability as of the measurement date was determined by using an actuarial valuation as 
noted in the table below, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to the 
measurement date. The actuarial valuations used the following actuarial assumptions for both ERS and 
PFRS: 

Measurement date March 31, 20 18 

Acturial valuation date April I, 2017 

Interest rate 7.00% 

Salary scale 3.8% for ERS 
4.5% for PFRS 

Cost of living adjustments 1.3% annually 

Decrement tables April 1,2010-
March 31, 2015 

System's Experience 

Inflation rate 2.50% 

The annuitant mortality rates are based on April 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015 System's experience with 
adjustments for mortality improvements based on Society of Actuaries ' Scale MP-2014. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the April l, 2017 valuation are based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period April 1, 20 l 0 - March 31, 2015. 

The long-term rate of return on pension plan investments was determined in accordance with Actuarial 
Standard of Practice (ASOP) No. 27, Selections of Economic Assumptions for Measuring Pension 
Obligations. ASOP No. 27 provides guidance on the selection of an appropriate assumed investment 
rate of return. Consideration was given to expected future real rates of return (expected returns net of 
investment expense and inflation) for each major asset class, as well as historical investment data and 
plan performance. Best estimates of the arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class 
included in the target asset allocation are summarized below: 
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Valuation date 

Asset Type 
Domestic equity 
International equity 
Private equity 
Real Estate 
Absolute retwn strategies 
Opportunistic portfulio 
Real assets 
Bond and mortgages 
Cash 
Inflation-indexed bonds 

Discount Rate 

Target 
Allocation 

36% 
14% 
10% 
10% 
2% 
3% 
3% 

17% 
1% 
4% 

100% 

April 1, 2017 

Long-Tenn 
Expected Real 
Rate ofRetwn 

4.55% 
6.35% 
7.50% 
5.55% 
3.75% 
5.68% 
5.29% 
1.31% 

(0.25%) 
1.25% 

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 7.0%. The projection of cash flows 
used to detennine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required 
rates, actuarially. Based upon the assumptions, the Systems' fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long 
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption 

The following presents the Village's proportionate share of the net pension asset/(liability) calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.0%, as well as what the Village's proportionate share of the net pension 
asset/(liability) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentagepoint lower 
(6.0%) or 1-percentagepoint higher (8.0%) than the current rate: 
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1% Current 1% 
Decrease Assumption Increase 

ERS (6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%) 
Village's proportionate share 
of the net pension asset/(liability) $ ~I I. 180.888l $ ~I .477.728l $ 6,730.758 

CommWlity Development ERS 
Vi II age's proportionate share 
of the net pension asset/(liability) $ (78,6 I 7l $ (I0.390) $ 47.326 

PFRS 
Village's proportionate share 
of the net pension asset/(liability) $ 01.369.11 n $ (2,321 .046l $ 5,268,158 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

The components of the current-year net pension liability of the employers as of the respective valuation 
dates were as follows: 

Valuation date 
Employers' total pension liability 
Plan fiduciary net position 
Employers' net pension liability 

Ratio of plan fiduciary net position to the 
employers' total pension liability 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

(Dollars in Thousands) 
ERS ffR.S... 

April 1, 2017 
$ (183,400,590) 

180.173,145 
$ (3.227.445) 

98.24% 

April 1, 2017 
$ (32,914,423) 

31 .903,666 
$ (1 ,010,757) 

96.93% 

Employer contributions are paid annually based on the System' s fiscal year which ends on March 
31 51

• Accrued retirement contributions as of May 31, 2018 represent the projected employer contribution 
for the period of April 1, 2018 through May 31, 2018 based on paid wages multiplied by the employer's 
contribution rate, by tier. Accrued ERS and PFRS retirement contributions as of May 31, 2018 
amounted to $332,992 and $343,565, respectively. 
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NOTE 13 - OTHER RETIREMENT PLAN: 

Deferred Compensation Plan: 

The Village has established a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Internal Revenue Code§ 457 
for all employees. The Village makes no contributions to the Plan. The amount deferred by eligible 
employees for the year ended May 31, 2018 totaled $1, 144,327. 

NOTE 14 - PENSION TRUST - FIRE SERVICE A WARDS PROGRAM: 

The Village established a defined contribution length of service award program (the "LOSAP") for the 
active volunteer firefighters of the Village of Rockville Centre Volunteer Fire Department. The 
program was established pursuant to Article 11-A of the General Municipal Law. The program 
provides municipally-funded pension-like benefits to facilitate the recruitment and retention of active 
volunteer firefighters. The Village is the sponsor of the program. 

A) Program Description: 

i) Pa'rticipation, vesting and service credit 

Active volunteer firefighters who have reached the age of 18 and who have completed one year of 
firefighting service, and upon earning 50 or more points in a calendar year after 1993 are eligible to 
participate in the program. Participants acquire a nonforfeitable right to a service award after being 
credited with 5 years of firefighting service. In general, an active volunteer firefighter is credited 
with a year of firefighting service for each calendar year after the establishment of the program in 
which he or she accumulates fifty points. Points are granted for the performance of certain activities 
in accordance with a system established by the sponsor on the basis of a statutory list of activities 
and point values. A participant may also receive up to 5 years of credit for firefighting performed 
prior to 1994. 

ii) Benefits 

A participant's benefit under the program is the amount resulting from the contributions made by the 
sponsor on behalf of the participant, plus interest and/or other earnings resulting from the investment 
of the contributions, less necessary administrative costs, forfeitures and losses resulting from the 
investment of contributions. Contributions in the amount of $700 are made on behalf of each 
participant who is credited with a year of firefighting service. Except in the case of permanent total 
disability or death, benefits are payable when a participant reaches entitlement age. Participants 
remain eligible to accumulate points after entitlement age has been reached. The participants age 65 
and over receive payment directly from the Village for their service. 

8) Fiduciary Investment and Control: 

Service credit is determined by the Board of Trustees of the sponsor, based on information certified to 
the Board of Trustees by each fire company having members who participate in the program. Each fire 
company must maintain all required records on forms prescribed by the Board of Trustees. The Board 
of Trustees of the sponsor performs the administration of the program. Disbursements for the payment 
of benefits or administrative expenses must be approved by the Board of Trustees. 
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Program assets are required to be held in trust by LOSAP legislation, for the exclusive purpose of 
providing benefits to participants and their beneficiaries or for the purpose of defraying the reasonable 
expenses of the operation and administration of the program. 

Authority to invest program assets is vested in Mutual of America. Subject to restrictions in the program 
document, program assets are invested in accordance with a statutory "prudent person" rule. Each 
program participant discusses future investments on their behalf with Mutual of America on an 
individual basis. 

C) Contributions: 

The total amount of contributions shall be made no later than the time prescribed by laws for the proper 
funding of the Plan. 

Although assets have been accumulated in an irrevocable trust such that the assets are dedicated to 
providing pensions to plan members in accordance with benefit terms, the trust assets are not legally 
protected from creditors of the Village. As such, the trust assets do not meet the criteria in paragraph 4 
of GASB Statement No. 73 . 

D) Program Financial Condition: 

i) Assets and Liabilities 

Assets Available for Benefits 

Mutual Funds 
Less: Liabilites 

Total Net Assets Available for Benefits 

Unfunded Liability for Prior Service 

SS 

% of total 
100.00% $ 4,494,216 

$ 4,494,216 

$ 
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ii) Receipts and Disbursements 

Plan net assets, beginning of year 

Changes during the year: 
Additions 

Plan contributions 
Interest and net change in 

fair value of investments 
Subtractions 

Plan benefit withdrawals 

Plan net assets, end of year 

$ 

334,287 

$ 

4, 159,929 

334,287 

4,494,216 

NOTE 15 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS2 PROPRIETARY FUND 
AND FIDUCIARY FUND: 

Interfund Interfund 
Receivable Payable Revenues Expenditures 

General fund $ 209,832 $ 84,367 $ $ 3,964,619 
Capital projects fund 705,000 5,201 7,433 
Non-major governmental 376 779,635 3,972,052 

Total government activities 915,208 869,203 3,972,052 3,972,052 
Water fund 3,437 21,794 
Electric fund 16,424 25,432 
Internal service fund 18,640 

Totals $ 935,069 $ 935,069 $ 3,972,052 $ 3,972,052 

The Village typically transfers monies from the general fund to the debt service fund, to finance 
principal and interest payments as they become due. The Village typically transfers monies from the 
general fund to the capital projects fund to finance capital projects. Unexpended funds from the capital 
projects fund are transferred to the debt service fund as bonded projects are completed. 

The Village typically loans resources to the other funds for the purpose of mitigating the effects of 
transient cash flow issues. 

All interfund payables are expected to be repaid within one year. 
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NOTE 16-POST-EMPLOYMENT (HEALTH INSURANCE) BENEFITS: 

A) Plan Description: 

The Village provides post-employment (health insurance, life insurance, etc.) coverage to retired 
employees in accordance with the provisions of various employment contracts. The benefit levels, 
employee contributions and employer contributions are governed by the Village's contractual 
agreements. New York State Health Insurance Program Empire Plan, (the "Plan") is a single-employer 
defined benefit healthcare plan administered by New York State. The Plan provides medical insurance 
benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses. Article 37 of the Statutes of New York State assigns the 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the Village. The Plan does not issue a stand­
alone, publicly available report since there are no assets legally segregated for the sole purpose of 
paying benefits under the Plan. 

B) Funding Policy: 

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Village are established and may be amended by 
the Village. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For 
fiscal year 2018, the Village contributed $2,460, 151 for current premiums and an additional $0 to 
prefund benefits. Plan members contribute 0% to 65% as per respective collective bargaining 
agreements. 

C) Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: 

The Village's annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the 
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially detennined in accordance 
with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on 
an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial 
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the 
components of the Village's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the Plan, 
and changes in the Village's net OPEB obligation to the Plan: 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 
Contributions made 
Increase in net OPEB obligation 
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year 
Net OPEB obligation-end of year 
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$ 9,181,346 
1,625,372 

(2,259,506) 
8,547,212 

(2,460, 151) 
6,087,061 

40,634,281 
$ 46,721,342 
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The Village's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan and the net 
OPEB obligation for 2018 and the two preceding years were as follows: 

Percentage 
Annual of Annual 

Fiscal Year Required Annual OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB 
Ending Contribution OPEB Cost Contributions Contributed Obligation 

May 31, 2016 $ 7,310,769 $ 6,841,132 $ 2,106,459 31% $ 34,828, 197 
May 31, 2017 $ 8,578, 131 $ 8,034,606 $ 2,228,522 28% $ 40,634,281 
May31,2018 $ 9,181,346 $ 8,547,212 $ 2,460,151 29% $ 46, 721,342 

Funded Status and Funding Progress: 

As of June 1, 2017, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was 0% funded. The actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits was $96,637,155 and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $96,637,155. The covered payroll (annual payroll of 
active employees covered by the plan) was $24,442,172, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered 
payroll was 395%. 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the 
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revisions as actual results are 
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding 
progress presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements 
provides multi year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing 
or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

F) Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and 
plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the historical pattern 
of sharing benefit costs between the Village and the plan members to that point. The actuarial methods 
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility 
in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective 
of the calculations. 

In the June l, 2017 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The 
actuarial assumptions include a 4.0% discount rate and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9.5% 
initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5% after 12 years. This rate includes a 5% 
inflation assumption. The UAAL is being amortized using the level dollar amortization method on an 
open basis. The remaining amortization at May 31, 2018, was 30 years. 
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IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT: 

A) General: 

The Village is self-insured for general, auto and police professional liability. The Village has retained a 
$300,000 liability per occurrence except for certain exceptions including auto which is retained at 
$250,000 and in order to reduce its exposure to catastrophic losses on insured events, has purchased 
"stop loss" insurance. Certain governmental funds and the enterprise fund are charged a premium by the 
Internal Service Fund. 

The Village is self-insured for workers' compensation benefits. The workers' compensation claims are 
covered up to statutory limits. There is a $500,000 self-insured retention per claim and $750,000 for 
police and fire. Insurance coverage has been secured for losses in excess of the retention. Certain 
governmental funds and the Enterprise Fund are charged premiums by the Internal Service Fund. 

The Village is self-insured for claims arising from unemployment cases and liabilities are not material. 

The Village is exposed· to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage, injuries, errors and 
omissions, natural disasters, and other risks in excess of self-insured amounts. These risks are covered 
by commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. There have been no significant 
reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. Settled claims from these risks have exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage in the past three years. During the current and prior year, the Village 
settled cases totaling approximately $282,315 in 20 I 8 and $13 8,586 in 2017. 

B) Claims: 

The Internal Service Fund reflects workers ' compensation benefit liabilities, general liability claims and 
unemployment benefit liabilities which are based upon estimates of the ultimate cost of claims 
(including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported, but not settled. Liabilities include 
an amount for reported claims which were incurred on or before year-end but not paid. Liabilities do 
include an amount for claims which were incurred on or before year-end but not reported (IBNR). The 
length of time for which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. 
Because actual claim costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal 
liability and damage awards, the process used in computing claims liabilities does not necessarily result 
in an exact amount. Claim liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and 
statistical techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim frequency and 
other economic and social factors . A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims 
costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflects 
past inflation and other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. An 
analysis of the activity of unpaid claim liabilities is as follows: 

Unpaid claims at beginning of year 

Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 

Claims payments 

Unpaid claims at year end 
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2018 

$ 3,389,753 

812,268 

~ 1,099, I 77) 

$ 3,102,844 

2017 

$ 3,552,799 

1,208,073 

(1,371,119) 

$ 3,389,753 



IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES: 

A) Grants: 

The Village has received grants which are subject to audit by agencies of the state and federal 
governments. Such audits may result in disallowances and a request for a return of funds. Based on 
prior audits, the Village's administration believes disallowances, if any, will be immaterial. 

B) Litigation: 

The Village is involved in lawsuits arising from the normal conduct of its affairs, as well as a defendant 
in numerous pending tax certiorari cases. Some of these lawsuits seek damages which may be in excess 
of the Village's insurance coverage. To the extent the outcome of such litigation has been determined to 
result in probable loss to the Village such loss has been accrued in the accompanying financial 
statements in the amount of $1,038,252. Any future refunds resulting from adverse settlements not 
accrued for will be funded in the year payments are made. 

C) Encumbrances: 

Significant encumbrances included in governmental fund balances have been classified as restricted or 
assigned fund balance and are as follows: 

i) General Fund - Total encumbrances of the general fund as of May 31 , 2018 were $284,691. 
Significant encumbrances of $167 ,493 were assigned for general support and $70, 191 for public 
safety equipment. 

ii) Capital Projects Fund-Total encumbrances of the capital projects fund as of May 31, 2018 were 
$2,667,026. Significant encumbrances of $2,225,616 were restricted to building work; $400,833 
was assigned and/or restricted to roadwork. 

D) Leases: 

Operating Leases 

The Village leases various equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable leases. Rental expense for the 
fiscal year was $148,259. The minimum remaining lease payments are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending May 31, Amount 

2019 $ 104,957 
2020 132,742 
2021 124,404 
2022 100,507 

2023 43,003 
2024-2025 74,030 

$ 579,643 
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IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

NOTE 19 -TAX ABATEMENTS: 

The Town of Hempstead Industrial Development Agency, established by Title 1 of Article 18-A of 
General Municipal Law of New York State, under the authority of New York State General Municipal 
Law Section 905, entered into various property tax abatement programs for the purpose of economic 
development, and general prosperity and economic welfare of the Town. The Village's property tax 
revenue was reduced by $708,382 for these programs. The Village received Payments in Lieu of Tax 
(PILOT) payments totaling $140,227. 

The Nassau County Industrial Development Agency, established by Title 1 of Article 18-A of General 
Municipal Law of New York State, under the authority of New York State General Municipal Law 
Section 922, entered into various property tax abatement programs for the purpose of economic 
development, and general prosperity and economic welfare of the County. The Village's property tax 
revenue was reduced by $429,256 for these programs. The Village received Payments in Lieu of Tax 
(PILOT) payments totaling $124, 124 for these programs during the fiscal year. 

The Village, County of Nassau and Rockville Center Housing, pursuant to Article V of the Private 
Housing Finance Law of the State of New York, entered into property tax abatement programs for the 
purpose of economic development, and general prosperity and economic welfare of the Village. The 
Village's property tax revenue was reduced by $288,433 for these programs. The Village received 
Payments in Lieu of Tax (PILOT) payments totaling $62,416 for this program during the fiscal year. 

The Village received PILOT payments from the County related to the Long Island Power Authority. 
These PILOT payments are not considered tax abatements as the purpose of this agreement was not to 
abate taxes. 

NOTE 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS: 

The Village has evaluated subsequent events through December 3, 2018, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. No significant events were identified that would require 
adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements. 
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES­
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

(Over) Under Originnl 
Budget Finni Budget Current Year Finni Budget 

REVENUES 

Real property taxes $ 29,166,372 $ 29,166,372 
Other tax items 924,341 924,341 
Departmental income 4,895,600 4,895,600 
Use of money & property 123,000 123,000 

Licenses & pennits 1,613,408 1,613,408 
Fines & forfeitures 1,400,000 1,400,000 
Sale of property & compensation for loss 105,000 105,000 
Intergovernmental charges 4,045,676 4,045,676 

State aid 931,671 931,671 
Federal aid 100,000 100,000 
Miscellaneous 1,426,043 1,426,043 

TOT AL REVENUES 44,731,111 44,731,I 1 I 

Appropriated fund balance 179,962 

TOT AL REVENUES & APPROPRIATED 
FUND BALANCE $ 44, 731, I 11 $ 44,911,073 

Note to Required Supplementary Information 

Budget Basjs of Accounting 
Budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting consistent 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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$ 29,121,923 
982,014 

4,810,702 
558,297 

1,277,984 
1,223,027 

187,183 
4,223,834 

974,133 
81,860 

1,526,628 

$ 44,967,585 

$ 44,449 
(57,673) 
84,898 

(435,297) 
335,424 
176,973 
(82,183) 

(178, 158) 
(42,462) 
18,140 

(100,585) 

$ (236,474) 

Sec Paragraph on Required Supplementary lnfonnation Included in Independent Auditor's Report 



(CPnllnucd) 
TUE INCORrORATED Vilt.AGE o~· ROCKVILLE CE!'o'TRE 

REQUIRED surrLEl\IENTARY INFORJllATION 
SCllEDUl.E Of REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ASI> CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-

BUDGET ,\ND ACTUAv GENERAL FUND 
FOR TUE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JllAY JI, 2018 

Final Budicl 
Variance will\ 

Oriimal Final Ac111al \'car-End Dudcctal')' Actual 
Budget o .... ,., jBudg•l.,V Basis! Encumb...,nces and Encumb...,n<e1 

EXrt:-.'DITURES 
GF.NERAI. !fOVF.RNl\lf;NT ~1nrrQRT 

BOMd llUSlecs $ 103,9SO s 107,2SO $ 107,2SO s $ 

\'11logc justice 252,7-14 2S2,744 20l,l9S l,39S S0. 154 
Mayor 141.SOO 149,454 149,4SO 4 
Comptroller 881,877 881,877 801,266 80,611 
CIC1k treasurer 1,027, 188 990,016 849,218 2,S91 138,207 
Professional SCl'\'i"s S7S,000 707,782 S36,0S7 163,248 8,477 
Pu~hasing 159,353 lS9,3S3 IS4,0S9 S.294 
Personnel 4J6.63S 426,6JS 410,SSI IOi.084 
Elections 9000 9,000 7,364 1.(1.36 
Ccnlr.ll garni;e 771.736 790,943 790,943 
Data processing 428,915 491 ,052 441 ,789 l.$9 4'1,004 
Spccinl i1C1ns 

Municipal associo1ions dues 9,561 10,972 10,972 
Judgments ond claims 1,409,300 1,409,300 1,212,413 196,887 
Mclropolitan commulcr tranopona1i011 mobili!) ~x 69,400 69.400 68.14 1 l ,2S9 
Insurance contnhutoon S00,000 S00,000 S00.000 

r1nn1.1c SAFETY 
Pohcc ci\•ilian 981, 124 937. IS6 842,026 95.130 
Police 9.999,408 10,0SJ,178 10,000 228 s 1,153 1,797 
Strce1 parldng 149,500 166,281 166,281 
Fire di:partmcnt 842,300 892,211 734,604 19,0l I 138,596 
Fire prevCIUion 13,700 13,700 3 684 10,0 16 
Sofety inspection 677,434 676,950 67077 27 2,346 
Auxiliary police 20,SOO 20,SOB 10682 9,826 

m:Al.Tll 
Re~istrar of Vital SIOtlSllCS 61,239 62,093 62,093 

IRA NSrORTA TION 
Slrect administration 76S,623 773,242 727,31 5 2,200 43,727 
Srrcct maintennncc 983,794 l,I09,29S 1,065,307 5,940 38,048 
Snow mno\'al 300,000 227,9S4 226,926 1,028 
Street lii;lning S43,600 543,600 S37,4J3 6,167 
Sidcwnlks 31.000 31,000 22.996 B,004 

F.CQNO:\llC QPrORT!INIT\' AND m:VF.l.QrMF.NT 
Publicity 92,000 92,000 86,649 S,JSI 

nrl.TllRt;~n!I u:{;R&UIQN 
Pnrh 673,999 708,JOS 693,516 14,789 
Piny & Recreation l.S96,267 l ,SS8.219 1,482,131 7,066 69,022 
MLK Ce111ct 288.001 218,001 262,132 25,869 
Senior Ccnacr 579.892 S79,892 S72,830 7,062 
Celebrations 33.000 JS,SI I 3S.Sl l 

!IQl\IF. and C.O:\IMll~ITY ~·;RVICt; 
Zoning Doard 38,300 40,200 27,367 12,133 
Planning Board 3 1,876 32,276 14,273 18,003 
Sanitlll)' Sewers 395,310 373.J 10 333,506 l ,4 1S 38,389 
Refuse Collection 2,,849,772 2,7S6.J80 2,726,465 7,390 22,S25 
Doard of Arch Review 5.ooo S,000 2,600 2,400 
S1am1 Sewers 191 ,27S 197,755 197,703 S2 
Emergency Tenant Prolection 7,500 7,740 7,740 

•;Mrl.Q\'F.F. RF,NEEIIli 
Employee bcndias 11.838,919 11 .808.919 ll .J l J.091 49U28 

TOTAL F-XPENDITURES 40.766,492 40,946.454 39,047,338 284.691 1.614,425 

QTltt; R FISANCIS(j !l:i&S 

Other lim1ncinl! uses · ttansfcn 10 other funds 3,964,619 3 964.619 3.964.6 19 
TOTA I. OTllF.R l'l:'\ANCING USES 3,964.619 J ,964.619 3,964,619 

TOTAL EXrENDITURES AND OTllER USES s 44,731.111 s 44.911,073 43,0 l l,9S7 s 284,691 s 1.614,425 

EXCESS OF REVESUES (EXPENDITURES) 1,955,628 

FUND BALANCES · BEGINNING OF \'EAR 8,32S, I06 

FU:-.'D BAl.ANCES • END OF YEAR $ 10.280,734 

Nole 10 Required Sappltmcnt•I')' lnronnetlon 
RudMel Ba~js oCaccountinK 

lludgcts Are edopled on the modified occrull bu1s of 1ecounung eonsiltenl 
with aceountin11 principles gcnemlly accepted in the United S1a1es of America. 
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
MAY 31, 2018 

Unfunded 
Liability as a 

Actuarial Percentage of 
Valuation Value of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered Covered 

Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll 

June I, 2012 $ $ 75,601,277 $ 75,601,277 0% $ 22,892,008 330% 

June I, 2014 $ $ 71,111,830 $ 71,111,830 0% $ 24, 185,039 294% 

June I, 2016 $ $ 88,996,043 $ 88,996,043 0% $ 24,442, 172 364% 

64 
Sec Paragraph on Required Supplementary lnfonnation Included in Independent Auditor's Report 



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF VILLAGE'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
FOR nm LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, * 

NYSERS Pension Pllln 

2018 ill1 2016 

Village's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0457863% 0.0467436% 0.0448793% 
Community Development's proportion of the net pension liability 0.0003219% 0.0002220% 0.0002536% 

Village's proportionate share of the net pension liability s 1,477,728 s 4,392,132 s 7,203,254 
Community Development's proportionate share of the net pension liability s I0,390 s 20,862 s 40,702 

Village's covered payroll $13, 177,965 s l 3, 153,344 $13,716,005 

Village's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
ns n percentage of its covered payroll 11.29% 33.39% 52.52% 

Pinn fiduciary net position us n percentage of the total pension liability 98.24% 94.70% 90.68% 

NYSPFR rcmsion Plun 

lli! 2017 2016 

Village's proportion of the net pension liability 0.2296344% 0.242583% 0.262200% 

Village's proportionate shore of the net pension liability s 2,321 ,046 s 5,027,902 s 7,763,183 

Village's covered payroll s 8,408,694 $ 8,275,129 s 8,712,398 

Village's proportionate share of the net pension liability 27.60% 60.76% 89. 11% 
ns a percentage of its covered payroll 

Pinn fiduciary net position ns n percentage of the total pension liability 96.93% 93.46% 90.24% 

• The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined ns of the measurement dates of the plans. 
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2015 

0.0455493% 
0.0003449% 

s 1,538,768 
s 11,651 

$12,661,664 

12.15% 

97.95% 

2015 

0.264672% 

$ 679,116 

s 8,746,302 

7.76% 

99.00% 

See Paragraph on Required Supplementary Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report 



THE IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF VILLAGE'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 

NYSERS Pension Plan 

2018 2017 2016 

Contractually required contribution $ 1,941,494 $ 2,010,172 $ 2,172,165 $ 

Contributions in relation to the contractually 
required contribution 1,941,494 2,010,172 2,172,165 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ $ 

Village's covered payroll $ 13,147,634 $ 13,595,933 $ 13,310,785 $ 

Contributions as a percentage of covered 14.77% 14.79% 16.32% 
payroll 

NYSPFRS Pension Plan 

2018 2017 2016 

Contractually required contribution $ 2,034,338 $ 2,104,640 $ 1,694,871 $ 

Contributions in relation to the contractually 
required contribution 2,034,338 2,104,640 1,694,871 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ $ 

Village's covered payroll $ 8,395, 192 $ 8,502,395 $ 8,456,953 $ 

Contributions as a percentage of covered 24.23% 24.75% 20.04% 
payroll 
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2015 

2,489,116 $ 

2,489,116 

$ 

13,262,296 $ 

18.77% 

2015 

2,886,280 $ 

2,886,280 

$ 

8,968,011 $ 

32.18% 

Paragraph on Required Supplementary Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report 

2014 

2,795,580 

2,795,580 

12,828, 119 

21.79% 

2014 

2,321,824 

2,32 I ,824 

9,024,858 

25.73% 



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 

GENERAL FUND 
MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,281,575 $ 8,643,066 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 1, 124,830 1,513, 159 
Truces receivable, net of allowance 

for uncollectible amounts 294 294 
Other receivables: 

Accounts, net 189,656 29,553 
State and federal aid 118,522 251,630 
Due from other governments 157,749 152,749 
Due from other funds 209,832 195,228 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 13,082,458 $ 10,785,679 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Payables 

Accounts payable $ 643,052 $ 357,099 
Accrued liabilities 1,512,849 1,409,114 
Due to other governments 2,216 738 
Due to retirement system 558,733 622,258 
Due to other funds 84,367 57,699 

Unearned revenues 
Collections in advance 507 13,665 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 2,801,724 2,460,573 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted (employee benefit accrued liability) 1, 124,830 1,513, 159 
Assigned (true certiorari) 2,024,956 2,024,956 
Assigned (unappropriated) 284,691 567,995 
Unassigned 6,846,257 4,218,996 

TOT AL FUND BALANCES 10,280,734 8,325,106 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 13,082,458 $ 10,785,679 
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TUE INCORrORATED VILLAGE OF ROCk'.\'11.LE CENTRt:. 
COMrARA Tl\'E SC!lt:.DULE OF REVENUES, EXrENDITURES AND CllANGES IN FUND DAIJ\NCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

GENER.\I. FUND 
FOR TUE FISCAL YEARS E:>iDED MAl' JI, 2018 ASD 2017 

2018 2017 

FiHI Budi:cl 
\'arianu " 'ilh 

Budi:cl•I)' 
Original .\clual and Original 
Rud gel I' Ina I Budttet Currcnc l'car Encumbrances Encumbrances Budget Final BudJlel Currrnc Vear 

REVENUES 
Real property laxes s 29,166,372 s 29, 166,372 s 29,121,923 s s 44,449 s 28,688,848 s 28.688,848 s 28,589,814 
Other tax Items 924,341 924,341 982,014 (57,673) 923,341 923 ,341 903.715 
Ocpartmcnlal income 4,895,600 4,895,600 4,810,702 84,898 4,858,600 4,859,080 4 ,775,528 
Use of money & property 123,000 123,000 558,297 (435,297) 108,000 108.000 132,140 
Licenses & pcnnits 1,613.408 1,613,408 1,277,984 335,424 1,480 ,000 1,480,000 1,506,398 
Fines & forfeitures 1,400,000 1,400,000 1.223,027 176.9 73 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,251.297 
Sale of property &. compcnsa110n for loss 105,000 105,000 187,183 (82,183) 102,000 120,809 308.133 
lntergo"emmenlal charges 4,045,676 4,045,676 4,223,834 ( 178,158) 4,045,676 4 ,045,676 4,117,975 
S1a1e and county aid 931 ,671 931 ,671 974,133 (42,462) 911 ,671 911.671 981 ,366 
Federal aid 100,000 100,000 81 ,860 18,140 100,000 283,566 359,912 
Miscellaneous 1.426.043 1,426043 1.526.628 ( 100.585~ 951.498 977,433 861.128 

TOTAL REVENUES 44.7311111 44.731,111 44.967.585 - (236.474) 43.569.634 43,798.424 43.787,406 

EXPENDITURES 
General government support 6,776,159 6,955,778 6,240,668 167,49) 547,617 6,524,240 6,479,717 6,042,318 
Public safety 12,683,966 12,759,984 12,432,082 70,191 257.711 12,406,441 12,953,008 12,863,966 
Health 61,239 62,093 62,093 - 68,489 67,882 67,336 
Transportation 2 ,624,017 2,685,091 2,SS6,981 31,136 96,974 2,638,771 2,668,520 2,599,948 
Economic opponunity and development 92,000 92,000 86.649 S,351 92,000 92,000 83,534 

Culture and rccrea1ion 3,171,159 3,169,928 3,046,120 7,066 116,742 3, 164,036 3,653, 152 3 ,608,365 
Home and community services 3,519,033 3,412,661 3,309,654 8,805 94,202 3,367,761 3,429,443 3,403,621 
Employee benefits 11,838.919 11 ,808,919 11.313,091 495,828 11 .296,800 11.144,396 10,943,806 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 40,766.492 40946,454 39,047,338 284,691 1,614.425 39.558,538 40.488,118 39,612.894 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USESI 
Operating tr.msfers in - 10,500 10,500 
Operating transfers out {3.964.~!_9)_ (3,964,6 I 9) (3.964,619) - (4.011 .096) _(4.01_1~096) (4.011.096) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (3.964.619) (3.964,619) p .964.619) - . !4.011.096) !4.000,596) (4,000,596) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTllER 
SOURCES (USES) s 44.731.111 s 44,911 .073 43,011 ,957 s 284.691 s 1,614.425 s 43.569.634 s 44,488.714 43,613,490 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BAL\NCES 1,955,628 173,916 

FUND BAL\NCES- BEGINNING OF VEAR 8 .325,106 8.ISl.190 

FUND BAL\NCES- END OF YEAR s 10.280.734 s 8.325.106 

Nole to Required Supplcmcnlary Information 
Rud get Basis of Accounting 

Budgets ore adopted on the modified accnuil baSIS of accounling consistent 
\l'llh accountmg pnnc1plcs generally accepted in the United Slates of Amenca. 
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Final Budget 
Variance " ' ilh 

Budi:dary 
Aclual and 

Encumbrances Encumbrances 

s s 99,034 
19,626 
83,552 

(24,140 ) 
(26.398) 
148,70) 

(187,324 ) 
(72.299) 
(69,69S) 
(76,346) 
116.305 

- 11.018 

214.495 :m,904 
68,800 20,242 

546 
21,919 46,653 

8,466 
7,840 36,947 
2,768 23,054 

200.590 

315.822 559,402 

s 315.822 s 559,402 



THE IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted $ 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 546,925 
Receivables: 

State and federal aid 58,481 
Due from other governments 
Due from other funds 705,000 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 1,310,406 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Payables 

Accounts payable $ 381,283 
Due to other funds 5,201 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 386,484 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 2,457,237 
Unassigned (1 ,533,315) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 923,922 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 1,310,406 
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2017 

$ 84,542 
5,086,245 

240,718 
38,729 

17 

$ 5,450,251 

$ 576,500 
213,870 

790,370 

5,086,245 
(426,364) 

4,659,881 

$ 5,450,251 



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 2017 
REVENUES 

State aid $ 609,276 $ 406,896 
Mi see llaneous 724,000 

TOTAL REVENUES 1,333,276 406,896 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay 5,061,802 5,787,169 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,061,802 5,787,169 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) 
OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (3, 728,526) (5,380,273) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Issuance of serial bonds 4,500,000 
Operating transfers (out) (7,433) (85,069) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (7,433) 4,414,931 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (3, 735,959) (965,342) 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,659,881 5,625,223 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR $ 923,922 $ 4,659,881 
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TllE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMBINING BAL\!liCE SllEET ·NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

MAY JI, 2018 

Sl!,!clal Revenue Funds Total 

Community Section 8 Special Debt Non-Major 

Dcvclo(!mcnt llouslng PUr(!OSC Total Service Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash nnd cnsh equ1vaknts • unrcstnc1cd s 28,385 s s s 28,385 s s 28,385 
Cnsh and cash equivalents· restricted 369,070 847,853 1,216,923 363,498 1,580,421 
Receivables 

Accounts, nel 22,026 22,026 22,026 
Due from olhcr govemmcnls 51,404 51.404 51,404 

Due from other funds 376 376 

TOTAL ASSETS s 79,789 s 391.096 s 847,853 s 1.318.738 s 363,874 s 1.682,612 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Accounts payable s 3,080 s 1,050 s s 4,130 s s 4,130 
Accrued liobili11cs 345,542 345,542 345,542 
Due 10 other funds 74.635 705,000 779.635 779,635 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 77.715 346,592 705,000 1,129.307 1.129.307 

FllND BALANCES 
Rcstnclcd 44,504 142,853 187,357 363,874 551.231 
Assigned 2,074 2,074 2,074 

l 'OTAL FUND BALANCES 2,074 44,504 142,853 189.431 363.874 553,305 

l'OTAL LIABILITIES AND FllND BALANCES $ 79,789 s 391,096 s 847,853 Sl.318.738 s 363.874 s 1,682,612 
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TllE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENl 1ES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NON MA.JOR GOVERNMENTAL FVNDS 
FOR TllE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MA\' 31, 2018 

Spcci11I Rc\·cnuc Funds Tot11I 
Community Section 8 Speci11I Debt Non ~IAjor 
Devclol!mcnt Housing PU!J!OSe Tot11I Service Funds 

REVENUES 
Departmental income s s 43,350 s s 43,350 s s 43,350 
Use of money and property 237 1,107 1,344 23,366 24,710 
Federal aid 97,560 2,785,118 2,882,678 2,882,678 
Miscellaneous 9 110,658 110.667 110.667 

TOTAL REVENUES 97,797 2.829.584 I 10.658 3.038,039 23.366 3,061,405 

EXPE~DITlJRES 
economic opportunity 

and development 2,849,852 2,849,852 2,849,852 
Culture and recrcolion 148,076 148,076 148,076 
Momc and community services 97,560 97,560 97,560 
Debt service 

Principal 3,280,000 3,280,000 
Interest 819,619 819,619 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 97.560 2,849.852 148,076 3,095,488 4.099,619 7, 195,107 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) 
OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 237 (20,268) (37,418) (57.449) (4.076.253) ( 4.133, 702) 

OTllEH. FINANCING SOURCES 
Refund of bond escrow payment 942 942 
Operating transfers in 3,972.052 3.972,052 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 3.972,994 3.972.994 

NET CllANG~: IN FtlNI> BALANCES 237 (20,268) (37,418) (57,449) (103,259) ( 160,708) 

FUND BALANCES· BEGINNING OF YEAR 1.837 64.772 180,271 246.880 467.133 714,013 

FUND BALANCES· END OF \'EAR s 2,074 s 44,504 s 142.853 s 189.431 s 363,874 s 553,305 
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND 
MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted $ 28,385 
Receivables: 

Due from other governments 51,404 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 79,789 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Accounts payable $ 3,080 
Due to other funds 74,635 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 77,715 

FUND BALANCES 
Assigned 2,074 

TOT AL FUND BALANCES 2,074 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 79,789 
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2017 

$ I 7, 186 

186,533 

$ 203,719 

$ 90,600 
111 ,282 

201,882 

1,837 

1,837 

$ 203,719 



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

REVENUES 
Use of money and property 
Federal aid 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Home and community service 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUNDBALANCES-ENDOFYEAR 

$ 

$ 

74 

2018 

237 $ 
97,560 
97,797 

97,560 

237 

1,837 

2017 

71 
341,980 
342,051 

341,980 

71 

1,766 

2,074 $ 1,837 =-a:=======-
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 

SECTION 8 HOUSING FUND 
MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted $ 369,070 $ 359,314 
Receivables: 

Accounts, net 22,026 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 391,096 $ 359,314 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Accounts payable $ 1,050 $ 
Accrued liabilities 345,542 292,847 
Due to other funds 1,695 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 346,592 294,542 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 44,504 64,772 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 44,504 64,772 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 391,096 $ 359,314 
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

SECTION 8 HOUSING FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

REVENUES 
Departmental income 
Use of money and property 
Federal aid 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Economic opportunity 

and development 

NETCHANGEINFUNDBALANCES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 

76 

2018 

$ 43,350 
1,107 

2,785,118 
9 

2,829,584 

2,849,852 

(20,268) 

64,772 

$ 44,504 
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2017 

$ 29,018 
483 

2,744,312 

2,773,813 

2,793,147 

( 19,334) 

84,106 

s 64,772 



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND 
MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 
Due from other governments 

TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
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2018 

$ 847,853 

$ 847,853 

$ 
705,000 

705,000 

142,853 

142,853 

$ 847,853 
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2017 

180,968 
1,753 

182,721 

2,450 

2,450 

180,271 

180,271 

182,721 



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2018 AND 2017 

REVENUES 
Miscellaneous 

EXPENDITURES 
Culture and recreation 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) 
OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 

78 

2018 

$ I 10,658 

148,076 

(37,418) 

180,271 

$ 142,853 
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2017 

$ 86,338 

I 13,887 

(27,549) 

207,820 

$ 180,271 



THE I NCO RPO RA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
MAY JI, 2018 AND 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 
Receivables: 

Due from other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

79 

2018 

$ 363,498 

376 

$ 363,874 

$ 363,874 

$ 363,874 
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2017 

$ 253,263 

213,870 

$ 467,133 

$ 467,133 

$ 467,133 



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY JI, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 2017 
Finni Budget Final Budget 

Vnrinnce with Variance with 
Original Budgetary Original Budgetary 
Budget Final Budget Current Year Actual Budget Finni Budget Current Year Actual 

REVENUES 
Use of money & property s - $ - s 23,366 s (23,366) s - s - s 13,885 s (13,885) 

TOTAL REVENUES - - 23,366 (23,366) - - 13,885 (13,885) 

EXPENDITURES 

Debt service 
Principal 3,280,000 3,280,000 3.280,000 - 3,240,000 3,240,000 3,340,000 (100,000) 

Interest 684.619 684,619 819.619 (135.000) 771.096 771,096 771,096 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,964,619 3,964,619 4.099,619 __ (135,000) 4,011 ,096 4,011,096 4. 111 ,096 (100,000) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Premium on obligations - - 211,489 (211,489) 

Refund of bond escrow payment 942 (942) 
Operating transfers in 3,964,619 3,964,619 3,972,052 F.433) 4,011 ,096 4,011 ,096 4,085,665 (74,569) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 3,964,619 3,964.619 3,972,994 (8,375) 4,011,096 4,011,096 4,297,154 (286,058) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER SOURCES (USES) s - s - 126,625 s (126,625) s - s - (186,058) s 186,058 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (103,259) 199,943 

FUND BALANCES- BEGINNING OF YEAR 467, 133 267, 190 -
FUND BALANCES- END OF YEAR s 363,874 s 467, 133 

= 

Note to Required Supplemenlary Information 
Budget Basis of Accounting 

Budgets arc adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting consistent 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

80 
Sec Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report 



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION 

ENTERPRISE FUND-WATER FUND 
MAV 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 2017 
ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents s 2,493,250 $ 5,585,799 
Receivables 

Accounts, net 3,185,778 2,435,373 
Due from other funds 3,437 7,740 

Inventories 219,933 236,495 
Total Current Assets 5,902,398 8,265,407 

Non-Current Assets 
Land 327,271 327,271 
Construction-in -progress 6,722,871 7,956,842 
Buildings and equipment 41,799,021 36,766,670 

48,849,163 45,050,783 
Less· Accumulated depreciation (11 ,246,386) (10,563,818) 

Totnl Non-Current Assets 37,602,777 34,486,965 
TOTAL ASSETS 43,505,175 42,752,372 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pensions 221,263 178,084 
Deferred charge on refunding 34,657 51,986 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 255,920 230,070 

TOT AL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES 43,761,095 42,982,442 

LIABILITIES 
Current Linbilitlcs 

Accounts payable 1,173,824 1,047,967 
Accrued liabilities 43,217 36,472 
Accrued interest 134,075 147,790 
Due to other funds 21,794 22,881 
Customer deposits 31,642 31,342 
Collections in advance 63,718 51,857 
Due to employees' retirement system 18,349 18,911 
Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums 1,807,992 1,597,992 
Compensated absences 9,700 8,487 

Total Current Liabilities 3,304,311 2,963,699 
Non-Current Liabilities 

Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums 16,834,931 18,642,924 
Compensated absences 378,304 330,995 
Net pension liability • proportionate share 73,443 237,614 
Net other post-employment benefit obligations 933,039 794,304 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 18,219,717 20,005,837 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 21,524,028 22,969,536 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pensions 234,654 36,667 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES 21,758,682 23,006,203 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 18,994,511 14,298,035 
Unrestricted 3,007,902 5,678,204 

TOTAL NET POSITION s 22,002,413 s 19,976,239 
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 2017 

OPERA TING REVENUES 
Charges for services 

Metered sales $ 5,430,927 $ 5,613,203 
Penalty income 150,905 134,656 
Miscellaneous 901,476 44,969 
Total operating revenues 6,483,308 5,792,828 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 143,907 160,425 
Depreciation 839,632 819,594 
Maintenance 447,319 417,533 
lnterfund charges 579,782 581,159 
Transmission and distribution 757,461 782,607 
General and administrative 1,068,955 1,148,507 
Employee benefits 549,003 536,108 
Insurance 75,000 75,000 

Total operating expenses 4,461 ,059 4,520,933 

Operating income 2,022,249 1,271,895 

NON-OPERA TING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Rental income 

. 
388,075 400,610 

Interest income 100,181 103,959 
Interest expense (484,331) (433,847) 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses} 3,925 70,722 

CHANGE IN NET POSlTION 2,026,174 1,342,617 

TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 19,976,239 18,633,622 

TOTAL NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 22,002,413 $ 19,976,239 
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

ENTERPRISE FUND-WATER FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 2017 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Revenue collected: 

Cash received from charges for services s 5,745,064 s 5,466,839 
Internal activity-payments from other funds for expense reimbursements 4,303 2,533 

Payments for expenses: 
Cash payments to other suppliers of goods or services (2,301,011) (2,878,982) 
Cash payments to employees for services and related expenses (993,920) (981,069) 
Internal activity-payments to other funds for expense reimbursements (1,087) 181 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,453,349 1,609,502 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of capital assets (3,955,444) ( 4,899,303) 
Proceeds from capital debt 42,993 3,732,364 
Principal paid on capital debt (I ,597 ,993) (1,398,451) 
Interest paid on capital debt (523,710) (451 ,414) 
Net C11sh Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (6,034, 154) (3,016,804) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest and rental income 488,256 504,569 
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 488,256 504,569 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cnsh Equivalents (3,092,549) (902,733) 

Cnsh and Cnsh Equivalents at Beginning of Yenr 5,585,799 6,488,532 

Cash nnd Cnsh Equivalents at End of Year $ 2,493,250 $ 5,585,799 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERA TING INCOME TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Operating income $ 2,022,249 s 1,271,895 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 

cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 839,632 819,594 
Decrease (increase) in: 

Accounts receivable (750,405) (328,609) 
Due from other funds 4,303 2,533 
Inventory 16,562 41,546 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 125,857 (415,488) 
Accrued liabilities 6,745 16,801 
Due to other funds (1,087) 181 
Customer deposits 300 (4,570) 
Collections in advance I 1,861 7,190 
Due to employees' retirement system (562) 121 
Compensated absences 48,522 33,297 
Pension amounts (9,363) 32,988 
Other post-employment benefit obligations payable 138,735 132,023 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 2,453,349 $ 1,609,502 
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION 

ENTERPRISE FUND - ELECTRIC FUND 
MAY 31,2018 AND 2017 

2018 2017 
ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,688,103 $ 8,863,152 
Receivables 

Accounts, net 3,425,441 3,399,010 
Due from other funds 16,424 75,902 

Inventories 2,620,396 2,641,764 
Total Current Assets 13,750,364 14,979,828 

Non-Current Assets 
Land 48,614 48,614 
Construction-in-progress 3,110,876 4,155,531 
Buildings and equipment 66,463, 139 63,328,996 

69,622,629 67,533,141 
Less - Accumulated depreciation (33,986,358) (33,467,970) 

Totnl Non-Current Assets 35,636,271 34,065,171 
TOTAL ASSETS 49,386,635 49,044,999 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pensions 1,294,088 877,404 
Deferred charge on refunding 136,547 156,054 

TOT AL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 1,430,635 1,033,458 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 50,817,270 50,078,457 
OF RESOURCES 

LIABILITIES 
Current Linbilities 

Accounts payable 3,312,819 2,615,582 
Accrued liabilities 235,249 254,089 
Accrued interest 96,060 112,018 
Due to other funds 25,432 26,905 
Customer deposits 1,471,226 1,403,593 
Due to employees' retirement system 99,475 104,782 
Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums 934,589 1,289,589 
Compensated absences 52,891 46,523 

Total Current Liabilities 6,227,741 5,853,081 
Non-Current Liabilities 

Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums 8,369,701 9,304,290 
Compensated absences 2,062,764 1,814,399 
Net pension liability - proportionate share 432,383 1,153,374 
Other post-employment benefit obligations payable 5,180,046 4,557,765 

Totnl Non-Current Liabilities 16,044,894 16,829,828 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 22,272,635 22,682,909 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pensions 1,381,483 177,979 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES 23,654,118 22,860,888 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 26,468,528 23,627,346 
Unrestricted 694,624 3,590,223 

TOT AL NET POSITION s 27,163,152 $ 27,217,569 
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

ENTERPRISE FUND - ELECTRIC FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 2017 
OPERATING REVENUES 

Charges for services 
Mclered sales s 25,376,857 $ 26,422,956 
Miscellaneous 346,886 436,584 
Total operating revenues 25,723,743 26,859,540 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 11,657,876 11,371,782 
Depreciation 1,443,818 1,541,299 
Maintenance 48,053 68,735 
Interfund charges 2,976,992 2,911,594 
Production 2,469,775 1,922,845 
Transmission and distribution 1,288,987 1,826,788 
Street lighting 254,490 353,539 
General and administrative 1,652,734 1,428,047 
Employee benefits 3,568,728 2,943,532 
Insurance 258,334 258,333 
Customer deposit interest 1,251 1,459 

Total operating expenses 25,621,038 24,627,953 

Operating income 102,705 2,231 ,587 

NON-OPERA TING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest income 105,523 38,658 
Interest expense (262,645) (283,319) 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (157,122) (244,661) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (54,417) 1,986,926 

TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 27,217,569 25,230,643 

TOT AL NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 27,163 ,152 $ 27,217,569 
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

ENTERPRISE FUND - ELECTRIC FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2018 ANO 2017 

2018 2017 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Revenue collected: 

Cash received from charges for services $ 25,764,945 s 26,094,674 
Internal activity-payments from other funds for expense reimbursements 59,478 (49,960) 

Payments for expenses: 
Cash payments to other suppliers of goods or services ( 17,646,790) ( 16,877,230) 
Cash payments to employees for services and related expenses ( 4,891,878) (5,436,161) 
Cash payments to customers on deposit interest ( 1,25 I) (1,459) 
Internal activity-payments to other funds for expense reimbursements (1,473) (7, 153) 
Net Cnsh Provided by Opernting Activities 3,283,031 3,722,71 I 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of capital assets (3,014,918) (2,232, I 99) 
Proceeds from capital debt 39,589 1,236, 114 
Principal paid on capital debt ( 1,289,589) ( 1,224,258) 
Interest paid on capital debt (298,685) (311,690) 
Net Cnsh Used in Capital nnd Related Financing Activities ( 4,563,603) (2,532,033) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest and rental income 105,523 38,658 
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 105,523 38,658 

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cnsh and Cash Equivnlents (I, 175,049) 1,229,336 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 8,863, 152 7,633,816 

Cnsh and Cnsh Equivalents at End of Year $ 7,688,103 s 8,863,152 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED 
BY OPERA TING ACTIVITIES: 
Operating income $ 102,705 $ 2,231 ,587 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 

cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 1,443,818 1,541,299 
Decrease (Increase) in: 

Accounts receivable (26,431) (709,241) 
Due from other funds 59,478 (49,960) 

Inventory 21,368 350,627 
Increase (Decrease) in: 

Accounts payable 697,237 (56,301) 
Accrued liabilities ( 18,840) 132,956 
Due to other funds (1,473) (7,153) 
Customer deposits 67,633 (55,625) 
Due to employees' retirement system (5,307) (666) 
Compensated absences 254,733 (407,535) 
Pension amounts 65,829 161,372 
Other post-employment benefit obligations payable 622,281 591,351 

Net Cash Provided by Opernting Activities $ 3,283,03 I $ 3,722,711 
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THE IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND - RISK RETENTION FUND 

MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted 
Accounts receivable, net 
Prepaid expenses 
TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 
Claims payable 

Total Current Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 

Claims payable 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

2018 

$ 3,100,983 

261,348 
3,362,331 

240,847 
18,640 

1,318,344 
1,577,831 

1,784,500 
1,784,500 
3,362,331 

$ 
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2017 

$ 3,355,378 
133, 185 
247,594 

3,736,157 

287,979 
58,425 

1,462,716 
1,809, 120 

1,927,037 
1,927,037 
3,736,157 

$ 



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND - RISK RETENTION FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services 

Risk management 
Total operating revenues 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
General and administrative 
Employee benefits 
Insurance 
Judgments and claims 

Total operating expenses 

Operating loss 

NON-OPERATING INCOME 
Interest income 

Total non-operating income 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

TOT AL NET POSITION- END OF YEAR 

2018 

$ 1,888,354 
1,888,354 

605,143 
953,177 
209,047 
146,000 

1,913,367 

(25,013) 

25,013 
25,013 

$ 
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2017 

$ 2,075,882 
2,075,882 

510,737 
977,372 
206,868 
393,747 

2,088,724 

(12,842) 

12,842 
12,842 

$ 



INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND - RISK RETENTION FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 2017 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 
Revenue collected: 

Cash received from charges for services $ 1,888,354 $ 2,075,883 
Cash received from insurance recoveries 133,185 (21,866) 

Payments for expenses: 
Cash payments to insurance carriers and claimants ( 1,307,985) (1,145,700) 
Cash payments to employees for services and related expenses (953,177) (977,372) 
Internal activity-payments (to) from other funds for expense reimbursements (39,785) 58,425 
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (279,408) (10,630) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest and rental income 25,013 12,841 
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 25,013 12,841 

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (254,395) 2,21 I 

Cush and Cush Equivalents at Beginning of Year 3,355,378 3,353,167 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 3,100,983 $ 3,355,378 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH 
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Operating loss $ (25,013) $ (12,842) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net 
cash provided by operating activities: 

Change in operating assets and liabilities: 
Decrease (Increase) in: 

Accounts receivable 133,185 (21,866) 
Prepaid expenses (13,754) 3,982 

Increase (Decrease) in: 
Accounts payable (47,132) 124,716 
Due to other funds (39,785) 58,425 

Claims payable (286,909) (163,045) 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities $ (279,408) $ (10,630) 
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THE IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

AGENCY FUND 
MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 2017 
ASSETS 

Cash $ 491,737 $ 821,596 
Accounts receivable 8,278 5,278 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 500,015 $ 826,874 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 14,490 $ 30,223 
Deposits 317,979 598,628 
Other liabilities 167,546 198,023 

TOT AL LIABILITIES $ 500,015 $ 826,874 
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THE IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

AGENCY FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018 

Balance Balance 
June l, May 31, 

2017 Increases Decreases 2018 
ASSETS 

Cash $ 821,596 $ 17,660 $ 347,519 $ 491,737 
Accounts receivable 5,278 3,000 8,278 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 826,874 $ 20,660 $ 347,519 $ 500,015 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and due 

to governmental funds $ 30,223 $ $ 15,733 $ 14,490 
Deposits and liabilities 796,651 17,660 328,786 485,525 

TOT AL LIABILITIES $ 826,874 $ 17,660 $ 344,519 $ 500,015 
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THE IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

PENSION TRUST FUND 
MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

ASSETS 
Investments, mutual funds, at fair value 

TOT AL ASSETS 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION 
Net position restricted for pensions 
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2018 

$ 4,494,216 
$ 4,494,216 

$ 4,494,216 

See Paragraph on Other lnfonnation Included in Independent Auditor's Report 

2017 

$ 4,) 59,929 
$ 4,159,929 

$ 4,159,929 



THE IN CORPORA TED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

PENSION TRUST FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 2017 

ADDITIONS 
Pension contributions $ $ 148,400 
Interest and net change in fair value of investments 420,643 444,324 

TOT AL ADDITIONS 420,643 592,724 

DEDUCTIONS 
Net reduction in fair value of investments 
Pension benefits 86,356 130,827 

TOT AL DEDUCTIONS 86,356 130,827 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 334,287 461,897 

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,159,929 3,698,032 

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 4,494,216 $ 4,159,929 
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